Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

This announcement is not an offer to sell or a solicitation of any offer to buy the securities of CNOOC Limited (the "Company") or any of its subsidiaries (the "Securities") in the United States or in any other jurisdiction. Securities may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an exemption from registration under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933. Any public offering of the Company's securities to be made in the United States will be made by means of a prospectus that may be obtained from the Company and that will contain detailed information about the Company and management, as well as financial statements. The Company is conducting a public offering of the securities as described herein in the United States pursuant to the Company's shelf registration statement on Form F-3 (File No. 333-224357) filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") on 20 April 2018.

No PRIIPs key information document (KID) has been prepared as not available to retail in EEA.



CNOOC Limited (中國海洋石油有限公司)

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability under the Companies Ordinance)
(Stock Code: 00883)

OVERSEAS REGULATORY ANNOUNCEMENT

This announcement is made pursuant to Rule 13.10B of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 20 April 2018 and 26 April 2018.

The Company and its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC (the "Issuer"), filed a prospectus supplement pursuant to Rule 424(b) under the U.S. Securities Act with the SEC on 26 April 2018, New York time (26 April 2018, Hong Kong time) in respect of the US\$450,000,000 3.750% guaranteed notes due 2023 (the "2023 Notes") and the US\$1,000,000,000 4.375% guaranteed notes due 2028 (the "2028 Notes", together with the 2023 Notes, the "Notes") of the Issuer, which will be unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the Company. The attached is a reproduction of the filings.

This announcement and its attachment (collectively the "**Documents**") do not constitute a prospectus under section 38D or section 342C of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong Kong). The Documents have not been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the said Ordinance and have not been registered with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong. As such, these Documents do not constitute or form part of an offer or invitation, or solicitation or inducement of an offer, to any person in Hong Kong to subscribe for or purchase any securities of the Company or the Issuer. The Documents shall not be

issued, circulated or distributed in Hong Kong in connection with any offer or invitation for subscription for or purchase of any securities of the Company or the Issuer, other than (i) in circumstances which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong Kong), or (ii) to "professional investors" within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder, or (iii) in other circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" within the meaning of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the laws of Hong Kong) and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Notes may be issued or may be in the possession of any person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the laws of Hong Kong) other than with respect to the Notes which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and any rules made thereunder.

By Order of the Board
CNOOC Limited
Li Jiewen
Joint Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 26 April 2018

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises:

Executive Directors
Yuan Guangyu
Xu Keqiang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chiu Sung Hong
Lawrence J. Lau
Tse Hau Yin, Aloysius
Kevin G. Lynch

Non-executive Directors
Yang Hua (Chairman)
Liu Jian (Vice Chairman)
Wu Guangqi

CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE

Title of Each Class of Securities to be Registered(1)	Amount to be Registered	Proposed Maximum Offering Price Per Unit	Proposed Maximum Aggregate Offering Price	Amount of Registration Fee(2)
4.375% Guaranteed Notes due 2028	US\$1,000,000,000	99.591%	US\$995,910,000	US\$123,990.79
3.750% Guaranteed Notes due 2023	US\$450,000,000	99.392%	US\$447,264,000	US\$55,684.37

⁽¹⁾ Pursuant to Rule 457(n) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, no separate fee is payable with respect to the guarantees of CNOOC Limited in connection with the above debt securities.

⁽²⁾ Calculated in accordance with Rule 457(r) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT TO PROSPECTUS DATED APRIL 20, 2018



CNOOC FINANCE (2015) U.S.A. LLC

(formed in the State of Delaware)

US\$1,000,000,000 4.375% Guaranteed Notes due 2028 US\$450,000,000 3.750% Guaranteed Notes due 2023

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by

CNOOC Limited

(incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong)

The 4.375% Guaranteed Notes due 2028 (the "2028 Notes") and the 3.750% Guaranteed Notes due 2023 (the "2023 Notes") will be issued in initial aggregate principal amounts of US\$1,000,000,000 and US\$450,000,000, respectively, by CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC (the "Issuer"). The 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes are referred to collectively in this prospectus supplement as the "Notes." The Notes will be the direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by CNOOC Limited (the "Company"). We refer to the guarantees by the Company as the "Guarantees."

The 2028 Notes will bear interest from May 2, 2018 at the rate set forth above, payable semi-annually in arrears on May 2 and November 2 of each year, commencing November 2, 2018. The 2023 Notes will bear interest from May 2, 2018 at the rate set forth above, payable semi-annually in arrears on May 2 and November 2 of each year, commencing November 2, 2018.

The Issuer may redeem the Notes at any time upon the occurrence of certain tax events. At any time, the Company or the Issuer may, at the Company's or the Issuer's option, redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. For a more detailed description of the Notes and the Guarantees, see "Description of the Notes and Guarantees" in this prospectus supplement and "Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees" in the accompanying prospectus.

Investing in the Notes involves risks. See "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-11.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of the Notes or the Guarantees or determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

	Public Offering Price(1)	Underwriting Discount	Proceeds to the Issuer (Before Expenses)(1)
Per 2028 Note Total Per 2023 Note Total Total	US\$995,910,000 99.392%	0.2% US\$2,000,000 0.2% US\$ 900,000	99.391% US\$993,910,000 99.192% US\$446,364,000

Note:

In connection with this offering, a limited numbers of investors are expected to purchase a significant percentage of the Notes, including one investor who is expected to purchase 22.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes and another investor who is expected to purchase 38.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2028 Notes, each at the initial public offering price and on the same terms as the other Notes. In addition, affiliates of Bank of China Limited, one of the underwriters in the offering, are in aggregate expected to purchase approximately 20.4% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes and approximately 7.6% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2028 Notes. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)."

Application will be made to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (SEHK) for the listing of the 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes by way of debt issues to professional investors (as defined in Chapter 37 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong) (together, "Professional Investors") only. This document is for distribution to Professional Investors only. Investors should not purchase the 2028 Notes or the 2023 Notes in the primary or secondary markets unless they are Professional Investors and understand the risks involved. The 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes are only suitable for Professional Investors.

SEHK has not reviewed the contents of this document, other than to ensure that the prescribed form disclaimer and responsibility statements, and a statement limiting distribution of this document to Professional Investors only have been reproduced in this document. Listing of the 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes on SEHK is not to be taken as an indication of the commercial merits or credit quality of the 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes or the issuer and guarantor, or quality of disclosure in this document. Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and SEHK take no responsibility for the contents of this document, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss however arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

We expect to deliver the Notes to investors through the book-entry delivery system of The Depository Trust Company and its direct participants, including Euroclear Bank SA/NV and Clearstream Banking S.A. on or about May 2, 2018, which is the fifth business day following the date of this prospectus supplement. Purchasers of the Notes should note that trading of the Notes may be affected by this settlement date. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)."

Joint Global Coordinators, Joint Lead Managers and Joint Bookrunners

(in alphabetical order)

Bank of China Citigroup Credit Suisse Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. HSBC J.P. Morgan

Joint Bookrunners (in alphabetical order)

ICBC International Mizuho Securities Natixis Société Générale Corporate & Investment Banking

The date of this prospectus supplement is April 25, 2018

⁽¹⁾ Plus accrued interest, if any, from May 2, 2018.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

You are advised to exercise caution in relation to the offer. If you are in any doubt about any of the contents of this document, you should obtain independent professional advice. The Notes are only available in Hong Kong or to persons resident in Hong Kong who are (a) "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance; or (b) acquiring the Notes in circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" as defined in the Companies (Winding up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance. Each purchaser of the Notes in the United States who is a resident of Hong Kong, by accepting delivery of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, will be deemed to have represented, agreed and acknowledged that (a) it is a "professional investor" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance; or (b) it is acquiring the Notes in circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" as defined in the Companies (Winding up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance.

No advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Notes, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) has been issued or had in possession for the purposes of issue or will be issued or had in possession for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, other than with respect to Notes which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside of Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made under that Ordinance.

PRIIPs Regulation / Prohibition of Sales to EEA Retail Investors

The Notes are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in the European Economic Area ("EEA"). For these purposes, a retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of: (i) a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II (as defined herein); (ii) a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II. Consequently no key information document required by Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the "PRIIPs Regulation") for offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to retail investors in the EEA has been prepared and therefore offering or selling the Notes or otherwise making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPS Regulation.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Prospectus Supplement	
About this Prospectus Supplement and the Accompanying Prospectus	S-i
Forward-Looking Statements	S-ii
Summary	S -1
Certain Financial Data	S-7
Risk Factors	S-11
Use of Proceeds	S-14
Exchange Rate Information	S-15
Capitalization	S-16
Description of the Notes and Guarantees	S-17
Taxation	S-22
Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)	S-27
Legal Matters	S-33
Experts	S-33
Where You Can Find More Information About Us	S-34
Incorporation of Documents by Reference	S-34
Prospectus	
•	Dog
	Page
About this Prospectus	
CNOOC Limited	
The Issuer	
Risk Factors	
Forward-Looking Statements	
Where You Can Find More Information About Us	5
Incorporation of Documents By Reference	5
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	6
Use of Proceeds	6
Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees	7
Plan of Distribution	23
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities	24
Legal Matters	25
Experts	25

We are responsible for the information contained and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and in any related free writing prospectus we prepare or authorize. We have not authorized anyone to give you any other information, and we take no responsibility for any other information that others may give you. If you are in a jurisdiction where offers to sell, or solicitations of offers to purchase, the Notes offered by this document are unlawful, or if you are a person to whom it is unlawful to direct these types of activities, then the offer presented in this document does not extend to you. The information contained in this document speaks only as of the date of this document, unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies.

This document includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Issuer and the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guarantor accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this document and confirms, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of its knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT AND THE ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTUS

This document is in two parts. The first is this prospectus supplement, which describes the specific terms of this offering. This prospectus supplement also incorporates by reference the information described under "Where You Can Find More Information About Us." The second part is the accompanying prospectus dated April 20, 2018. The accompanying prospectus contains a description of our debt securities and gives more general information, some of which may not apply to this offering.

If the description of this offering varies between this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, you should rely on the information in this prospectus supplement.

This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on HKSE for the purpose of giving information with regard to us. We accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of our knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

In this prospectus supplement, unless otherwise indicated, references to "we," "us," "our" and the "Company" refer to CNOOC Limited, or CNOOC Limited and its subsidiaries, including CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC (the "Issuer"), as the context requires. References to "CNOOC" are to China National Offshore Oil Corporation and its subsidiaries (other than CNOOC Limited and its subsidiaries). References to "China" and the "PRC" refer to the People's Republic of China and, solely for the purpose of this prospectus supplement, exclude the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan.

References to "Renminbi" and "RMB" are to the legal currency of China, references to "U.S. dollars" and "US\$" are to the legal currency of the United States, and references to "Hong Kong dollars" and "HK\$" are to the legal currency of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

There has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading position of the Company since December 31, 2017, except as set out in the "Risk Factors" and "Certain Financial Data" sections of this prospectus supplement.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference include "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements regarding expected future events, business prospects or financial results. The words "expect," "anticipate," "continue," "estimate," "objective," "ongoing," "may," "will," "project," "should," "believe," "plans," "intends" and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements address, among others, such issues as:

- the amount and nature of future exploration, development and other capital expenditures;
- wells to be drilled or reworked;
- development projects;
- exploration prospects;
- · estimates of proved oil and gas reserves;
- development and drilling potential;
- expansion and other development trends of the oil and gas industry;
- business strategy;
- production of oil and gas;
- development of undeveloped reserves;
- expansion and growth of our business and operations;
- oil and gas prices and demand;
- · future earnings and cash flow; and
- our estimated financial information.

These statements are based on assumptions and analysis made by us in light of our experience and our perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. However, whether actual results and developments will meet our expectations and predictions depend on a number of risks and uncertainties which could cause our actual results, performance and financial condition to differ materially from our expectations, including those associated with fluctuations in crude oil and natural gas prices, our exploration or development activities, our capital expenditure requirements, our business strategy, whether the transactions entered into by us can complete on schedule pursuant to their terms and timetable or at all, the highly competitive nature of the oil and natural gas industry, our foreign operations, environmental liabilities and compliance requirements, and economic and political conditions in the PRC and overseas. For a description of these and other risks and uncertainties, see "Risk Factors" and other cautionary statements appearing in this prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference.

Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this prospectus supplement and the documents incorporated by reference are qualified by these cautionary statements. We cannot assure you that the results or developments anticipated by us will be realized or, even if substantially realized, that they will have the expected effect on us, our business or our operations.

SUMMARY

The following summary highlights information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. It may not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in the Notes. You should carefully read this entire prospectus supplement, as well as the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein that are described under "Where You Can Find More Information About Us."

Our Business

CNOOC Limited

We are an upstream company specializing in the exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas. We are the dominant oil and natural gas producer in offshore China and, in terms of reserves and production, we are also one of the largest independent oil and natural gas exploration and production companies in the world.

As of the end of 2017, we had net proved reserves of approximately 4.84 billion BOE including approximately 2.54 billion barrels of crude oil and 8,250 bcf of natural gas. In 2017, we had an average daily production of approximately 1,064,986 barrels of crude oil and approximately 1,300.6 mmcf of natural gas, representing a total net oil and gas production of 1.29 million BOE per day, including approximately 47,355 BOE per day under our equity method investees (except as otherwise stated, all amounts of reserve and production in this prospectus supplement include our interests in equity method investees).

Our total revenues were RMB171.4 billion, RMB146.5 billion and RMB186.4 billion in 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively. Our profit for the year was RMB20.2 billion, RMB0.6 billion and RMB24.7 billion in 2015, 2016 and 2017, respectively.

We were incorporated with limited liability on August 20, 1999 in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The PRC government established CNOOC, our controlling shareholder, as a state-owned offshore petroleum company in 1982 under the Regulation of the PRC on the Exploitation of Offshore Petroleum Resources in Cooperation with Foreign Enterprises. CNOOC assumed certain responsibility for the administration and development of PRC offshore petroleum operations with foreign oil and gas companies. Prior to CNOOC's reorganization in 1999, CNOOC and its various affiliates performed both commercial and administrative functions relating to oil and natural gas exploration and development in offshore China. In 1999, CNOOC transferred all of its then current operational and commercial interests in its offshore petroleum business, including the related assets and liabilities, to us. As a result, we and our subsidiaries are the only vehicles through which CNOOC engages in oil and gas exploration, development, production and sales activities both in and outside the PRC.

Our registered office is located at 65th Floor, Bank of China Tower, One Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong, and our telephone number is +852 2213-2500. We maintain a website at www.cnoocltd.com where general information about us is available. The contents of the website are not part of this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus.

THE ISSUER

CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC is our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary and was formed as a limited liability company on March 23, 2015 in the State of Delaware. It has no material assets and will conduct no business except in connection with the issuance of debt securities and the loan of proceeds from such issuance to us or a company controlled by us. Its registered office is located at the offices of its registered agent, Corporation Service Company, at 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, Delaware, U.S.A. 19808. Its telephone number is 302-636-5400.

CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

The Offering

The following is a brief summary of the terms of this offering and is qualified in its entirety by the remainder
of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Terms used in this summary and not otherwise
defined shall have the meanings given to them in "Description of the Notes and Guarantees" in this prospectus
supplement and "Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees" in the accompanying prospectus.

Issuer	CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC (the "Issuer"), a limited liability company formed in and under the laws of the State of Delaware on March 23, 2015 (Registration No. 47-3525422).
Guarantor	CNOOC Limited (the "Company"), a company incorporated with limited liability on August 20, 1999 in Hong Kong under the Companies Ordinance (Registration No. 685974).
Notes Offered	US\$1,000,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 4.375% guaranteed notes due 2028, and
	US\$450,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 3.750% guaranteed notes due 2023
Guarantees	Payment of principal of, and interest and any Additional Amounts on, the Notes is irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company.
Issue Price	2028 Notes: 99.591% of principal amount, plus accrued interest, if any, from May 2, 2018, to the issue date.
	2023 Notes: 99.392% of principal amount, plus accrued interest, if any, from May 2, 2018, to the issue date.
Maturity Date	2028 Notes: May 2, 2028.
	2023 Notes: May 2, 2023.
Interest Payment Dates	May 2 and November 2, commencing November 2, 2018.
Interest	The 2028 Notes will bear interest from May 2, 2018 at the rate of 4.375% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears from November 2, 2018.
	The 2023 Notes will bear interest from May 2, 2018 at the rate of 3.750% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears from November 2, 2018.
	Interest will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30-day months.
Further Issues	The 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes will be issued in initial aggregate principal amounts of US\$1,000,000,000 and US\$450,000,000,

respectively. The Company and the Issuer may, however, from time to time, without the consent of the respective holders of a series of the Notes, create and issue, pursuant to the indenture, additional guaranteed notes, having the same terms and conditions under the indenture as the previously outstanding series of Notes in all respects, except for issue date, issue price, and amount of the first payment of interest thereon. Additional Notes issued may be consolidated with and form a single series with the previously outstanding Notes of the relevant series; provided, however, that no additional Notes will be issued under the same CUSIP, ISIN or other identifying number as the outstanding Notes of that series unless such additional Notes are fungible with such outstanding Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Ranking

The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer ranking pari passu, without any preference or priority of payment among themselves, with all of its other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness (except obligations preferred by applicable law).

The Guarantees will constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured of the Company, ranking pari passu with all of its other unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness (except obligations preferred by applicable law).

The Company has covenanted in the indenture, with certain exceptions, not to incur certain liens or consolidate, merge or sell its assets substantially as an entirety unless certain conditions are satisfied. The Notes and the indenture do not otherwise restrict or limit the ability of the Company to incur additional indebtedness by itself or its subsidiaries or its ability to enter into transactions with, or to pay dividends or make other payments to, affiliates. See "Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees—Certain Covenants" in the accompanying prospectus.

Additional Amounts

In the event that United States, Hong Kong or PRC taxes are required to be withheld in respect of payments pursuant to the Notes or the Guarantees, the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, will, subject to certain exceptions, pay such Additional Amounts under the Notes as will result, after deduction or withholding of such taxes, in the payment of the amounts that would have been payable in respect of the Notes had no deduction or withholding been required. See "Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees—Additional Amounts" in the accompanying prospectus.

Optional Redemption

At any time, the Company or the Issuer may, at the Company's or the Issuer's option, redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Notes redeemed plus the applicable premium as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date. See "Description of Notes and Guarantees—Optional Redemption" in this prospectus supplement.

Denomination, Form and Registration ...

The aggregate proceeds from this offering, after deducting underwriting commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by the Issuer and us, will be approximately US\$1,437.5 million. The Issuer will loan the proceeds of this offering to us or a company controlled by us. The proceeds will be used in part to repay all or part of certain outstanding borrowings of our wholly- owned subsidiary Nexen Energy Capital Management U.S.A. Inc. The remaining proceeds from this offering, if any, will be used for general corporate purposes. See "Use of Proceeds."

The Notes will be issued in minimum denominations of US\$200,000 and integral multiples of US\$1,000 in excess thereof.

The Notes will be represented by one or more global notes in fully registered form without interest coupons deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon as custodian for, and registered in the name of, Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"). Investors may elect to hold the interests in the global notes through any of DTC, Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") or Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear").

DTC will credit the account of each of its participants, including Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, with the principal amount of Notes being purchased by or through such participant. Beneficial interests in the global notes will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, records maintained by DTC and its direct and indirect participants, including Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

You should consider carefully all the information set forth and incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus and, in particular, you should evaluate the specific factors set forth under the heading "Risk Factors" beginning on page S-10 of this prospectus supplement, as well as the other information contained or incorporated herein by reference, before deciding to invest in the Notes.

S-4

Conflicts of Interest	Because Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC are underwriters in this offering and their affiliates may receive more than 5% of the net offering proceeds, a "conflict of interest" is deemed to exist under Rule 5121 of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA"). Therefore, the offering will be made in compliance with such rule. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)—Conflicts of Interest."
Listing	Application has been made to the listing of, and permission to deal in the Notes on the HKSE.
Trustee, Registrar, Paying and Transfer Agent	The Bank of New York Mellon.

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

The following table sets forth our unaudited consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges for each of the periods indicated using financial information extracted, where applicable, from our audited consolidated financial statements. Our audited consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS IASB").

	Year Ended December 31,					
	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	22.87	20.14	4.01	0.05	7.41	

Earnings included in the calculation of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges represent income before income taxes plus fixed charges, other than capitalized interest. Fixed charges include interest expense, including capitalized interest, amortization of debt issuance costs and a portion of rent expense representative of interest.

CERTAIN FINANCIAL DATA

Recent Developments

We achieved a total net production of 120.1 million barrels of oil equivalent ("BOE") for the first quarter of 2018, representing an increase of 0.8% year-over-year.

For the first quarter of 2018, we made six new discoveries and drilled fifteen successful appraisal wells in offshore China.

Our unaudited oil and gas sales revenue reached approximately RMB42.54 billion for the first quarter of 2018, representing an increase of 10.8% year-over-year, mainly due to the significant increase in international oil prices. During the period, our average realized oil price increased by 23.0% year-over-year to US\$63.50 per barrel, which is in line with the international oil prices trend. Our average realized gas price was US\$6.47 per thousand cubic feet, representing an increase of 7.8% year-over-year, mainly due to the increased gas production of high price gas fields.

For the first quarter of 2018, our capital expenditure for exploration, development and production reached approximately RMB9.66 billion.

The following table sets forth our net production data for the periods indicated:

	Three Months E	Ended March 31,
	2017(1)	2018(1)
Crude Oil & Liquids (mmbbls) China		
Bohai	40.5	38.8
Western South China Sea	9.3	9.5
Eastern South China Sea	17.5	16.7
East China Sea	0.4	0.4
Others		
Subtotal	67.7	65.5
Overseas		
Asia (excluding China)	4.6	6.2
Oceania	0.2	0.3
Africa	7.2	5.9
North America (excluding Canada)	4.2	4.5
Canada	4.9	5.8
South America	2.0	2.6
Europe	9.4	<u>7.9</u>
Subtotal	32.4	33.1
Subtotal (mmbbls)	100.2	98.6
Natural Gas (bcf) China		
Bohai	13.6	15.0
Western South China Sea	25.7	24.6
Eastern South China Sea	18.8	26.8
East China Sea	5.6	5.3
Others	_	0.2
Subtotal	63.7	71.9
Overseas		
Asia (excluding China)	12.8	14.1
Oceania	4.3	6.8
Africa	_	_
North America (excluding Canada)	11.0	11.9
Canada	4.0	3.5
South America	12.3	15.2
Europe	2.5	2.3
Subtotal	46.9	53.8
Subtotal (bcf)	110.6	125.7
Total (mm BOE)	119.1	120.1

Note:

⁽¹⁾ Including our interest in equity method investees, which was approximately 5.2 mmboe for the first quarter of 2018 and 4.2 mmboe for the first quarter of 2017.

The following table sets forth our unaudited revenue and capital expenditure for the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended March 31,			
	2017		20:	18
	RMB US\$(1) (in mil		RMB llions)	US\$(1)
Sales Revenue				
Crude oil and liquids	34,354	4,990	38,001	5,977
Natural gas	4,039	587	4,535	713
Marketing revenue, net	228	33	341	54
Others	1,857	270	1,798	283
Total	40,478	5,880	44,675	7,027
Capital Expenditures				
Exploration	2,101	305	1,901	299
Development	5,599	813	5,963	938
Production	962	140	1,775	279
Others	7	1	16	3
Total	8,669	1,259	9,655	1,519

Note:

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use adjusted EBITDA to provide additional information regarding our operating performance. Adjusted EBITDA refers to our profit from operating activities before the following items: (i) depreciation, depletion and amortization and (ii) impairment and provision.

Adjusted EBITDA is not a standard measure under International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS") or generally accepted accounting principles in the United States ("U.S. GAAP"). As the oil and gas industry is capital intensive, capital expenditure requirements may have a significant impact on the operating revenues of companies with similar operating results. Therefore, we believe the investor community commonly uses this type of financial measure to assess the operating performance of companies in our market sector.

As a measure of our operating performance, we believe that the most directly comparable IFRS and HKFRS measure to adjusted EBITDA is profit from operating activities. We operate in a capital-intensive industry. We use adjusted EBITDA in addition to profit from operating activities because profit from operating activities includes certain accounting items associated with capital expenditures, such as depreciation, depletion and amortization and impairment and provision. These accounting items may vary between companies depending on the method of accounting adopted by the company. By minimizing differences in capital expenditures and the associated depreciation, amortization and impairment expenses, adjusted EBITDA provides further information regarding our operating performance and an additional measure for comparing our operating performance with other companies' results. Funds depicted by this measure may not be available for debt service due to capital expenditure requirements and other commitments.

⁽¹⁾ An exchange rate of US\$1 = RMB6.3582 has been used for the first quarter of 2018, and an exchange rate of US\$1 = RMB6.8843 has been used for the first quarter of 2017, where applicable. The usage of these exchange rates is for illustration only and does not constitute a representation that any amount has been, could have been or may be exchanged or converted at the above rates or at any other rate at all.

The following table reconciles our profit from operating activities under IFRS and HKFRS to our definition of adjusted EBITDA for the periods indicated:

	Year Ended December 31,			
	2015	2016	2017	2017
	(RMB)	(RMB) (in m	(RMB) illions)	(US\$) ⁽¹⁾
Profit from operating activities	17,456	(2,412)	37,050	5,694
Adjustments for:				
Depreciation, depletion and amortization	73,439	68,907	61,257	9,415
Impairment and provision	2,746	12,171	9,130	1,403
ADJUSTED EBITDA	93,641	78,666	107,437	16,512

Note:

(1) An exchange rate of US\$1 = RMB6.5063 has been used for the year ended December 31, 2017, where applicable. The usage of this exchange rate is for illustration only and does not constitute a representation that any amount has been, could have been or may be exchanged or converted at the above rate or at any other rate at all.

You should not consider our definition of adjusted EBITDA in isolation or construe it as an alternative to profit from operating activities or as an indicator of operating performance or any other standard measure under IFRS or HKFRS. Our definition of adjusted EBITDA does not account for depreciation, depletion and amortization and impairment and provision. Our adjusted EBITDA measure as described above may not be comparable to similarly titled measures used by other companies.

RISK FACTORS

In considering whether to purchase the Notes, you should carefully consider the risks described below in this prospectus supplement, in the accompanying prospectus and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus. If any of these risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Relating to the Notes and the Guarantees

The Issuer has no material assets and relies on us to make payment under the Notes

The Issuer was established specifically for the purpose of issuing indebtedness, including the Notes and will loan the proceeds from the issue of the Notes to us or to a company controlled by us. The Issuer does not and will not have any material assets other than amounts due to it from us in respect of such loan, and its ability to make payments under the Notes will depend on its receipt of timely payments from us in respect of such loan.

The Notes and the Guarantees are unsecured obligations

As the Notes and the Guarantees are unsecured obligations, the repayment of the Notes may be compromised if:

- we enter into bankruptcy, liquidation, reorganization or other winding-up proceedings;
- there is a default in payment under our future secured indebtedness or other unsecured indebtedness; or
- there is an acceleration of any of our indebtedness.

If any of these events were to occur, our assets may not be sufficient to make payments to the Issuer to pay amounts due on the Notes.

We may be unable to obtain and remit funds in foreign currencies

Our ability to satisfy our obligations to the Issuer or pursuant to the Guarantees depends in part upon the ability of our subsidiaries or affiliates in China to obtain and remit sufficient funds in foreign currencies to pay dividends to us and to repay intercompany loans. A significant portion of the revenues of our PRC subsidiaries are denominated in Renminbi. Our PRC subsidiaries must present certain documents to the State Administration of Foreign Exchange, its authorized branch or the designated foreign exchange bank, for approval before they can obtain and remit foreign currencies out of China (including, in the case of dividends, evidence that the relevant PRC taxes have been paid and, in the case of intercompany loans, evidence of the registration of the loan with the State Administration of Foreign Exchange).

Our credit ratings may not reflect all risks of your investments in the Notes

Our credit ratings are an assessment by rating agencies of our ability to pay our debts when due. Consequently, real or anticipated changes in our credit ratings will generally affect the market value of the Notes. These credit ratings may not reflect the potential impact of risks relating to the structure or marketing of the Notes. Agency ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold any security, and may be revised or withdrawn at any time by the issuing organization. Each agency's rating should be evaluated independently of any other agency's rating.

The insolvency laws of Hong Kong and other local insolvency laws may differ from those of other jurisdictions

Because we are incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong, any insolvency proceeding relating to us would likely involve Hong Kong insolvency laws, the procedural and substantive provisions of which may differ from comparable provisions of the local insolvency laws of jurisdictions with which you may be familiar.

A trading market for the Notes may not develop

The Notes are a new issue of securities for which there is currently no trading market. Application has been made to the HKSE for listing of, and permission to deal in, the Notes by way of debt issued to professional investors only. We and the Issuer have been advised that the underwriters intend to make a market in the Notes, but the underwriters are not obligated to do so and may discontinue such market-making activity at any time without notice. We cannot predict whether an active trading market for the Notes will develop or be sustained.

The Notes may initially be sold to a small number of investors; accordingly, a liquid trading market for the Notes may not develop. In addition, one or more of the initial investors may own a significant percentage of the Notes and may be able to exercise certain rights and powers on behalf of all holders of the Notes

The Notes may initially be sold to a small number of investors. Accordingly, a liquid trading market may not develop or be sustained, in which case you may not be able to resell your Notes at their fair market value or at all. In addition, one or more of the initial investors may purchase a significant percentage of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes in this offering. If such investor sells a material portion of the Notes at any one time, it could materially and adversely affect the trading price of the Notes. Furthermore, investors that hold a significant percentage of the Notes may be able to exercise certain rights and powers and may have significant influence on matters voted on by holders of the Notes. For example, holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Notes may declare all the Notes to be immediately due and payable if certain types of events of default have occurred and are continuing. See also "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)—New Issue of Notes."

Investment in the Notes may subject you to foreign exchange risks

The Notes are denominated and payable in U.S. dollars. If you measure your investment returns by reference to a currency other than U.S. dollars, an investment in the Notes entails foreign exchange related risks, including possible significant changes in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the currency by reference to which you measure your investment returns, due to, among other things, economic, political and other factors over which we have no control. Depreciation of the U.S. dollar against such currency could cause a decrease in the effective yield of the Notes below their stated coupon rates and could result in a loss when the return on the Notes is translated into such currency. In addition, there may be tax consequences for you as a result of any foreign exchange gains resulting from any investment in the Notes.

Payments on the Notes may, and payments under the Guarantee will, be subject to PRC withholding tax and the Issuer may redeem each series of Notes in whole at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest in the event it is required to pay additional amounts in respect of PRC withholding tax in excess of 10% because it is treated as a PRC "resident enterprise"

In the event the Issuer is treated as a PRC "resident enterprise" under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, it may be required to withhold PRC tax on interest payable to non-resident holders of Notes. As of the date of this prospectus supplement, the Company is treated as a PRC "resident enterprise" and is required to withhold PRC tax on interest payable to non-resident holders of Notes with respect to the Notes pursuant to the Guarantees. If the Issuer is required to withhold PRC tax from interest payments, or the Company is required to withhold PRC tax from payments it makes pursuant to the Guarantees, the Issuer or the Company will, subject to certain exceptions, be required to pay such additional amounts as will result in receipt by a holder of Notes of such amounts as would have been received by the holder of Notes had no such withholding been required.

As described under "Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees—Optional Tax Redemption" in the accompanying prospectus, in the event the Company or the Issuer is required to pay additional amounts as a result of certain changes in, or certain changes to the official interpretation or application of, tax law (including any change or interpretation or application that results in it being required to withhold tax in excess of 10% on

interest payments as a result of the Issuer being treated as a PRC "resident enterprise" or on payments under the Guarantees), the Issuer may redeem each series of Notes in whole at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest.

Non-resident holders of Notes may be subject to PRC taxes on disposition gains

If the Issuer is treated as a PRC "resident enterprise" under the Enterprise Income Tax Law and related implementation regulations in the future, any gain realized by non-resident enterprise holders of Notes from the disposition of the Notes may be regarded as derived from sources within the PRC and accordingly would be subject to 10% enterprise income tax, and any gain realized by non-resident individual holders of Notes from the disposition of the Notes may be regarded as derived from sources within the PRC and accordingly would be subject to 20% individual income tax. Applicable tax treaties may provide for lower tax rates.

Developments in other markets may adversely affect the market price of the Notes

The market price of the Notes may be adversely affected by declines in the international financial markets and world economic conditions. The market for Chinese securities is, to varying degrees, influenced by economic and market conditions in other markets, especially those in Asia. Although economic conditions are different in each country, investors' reactions to developments in one country can affect the securities markets and the securities of issuers in other countries, including China. Since the subprime mortgage crisis in 2008, the international financial markets have experienced significant volatility. If similar developments occur in the international financial markets in the future, the market price of the Notes could be adversely affected.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The aggregate proceeds from this offering, after deducting underwriting commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by the Issuer and us, are estimated to be approximately US\$1,437.5 million.

The Issuer will loan the proceeds of this offering to us or a company controlled by us. The proceeds will be used in part to repay all or part of certain outstanding borrowings of our wholly-owned subsidiary Nexen Energy Capital Management U.S.A. Inc. Up to approximately US\$500 million, or approximately 35%, of the proceeds from this offering are expected to be used to repay the lenders that act as or are otherwise affiliated with certain underwriters of this offering. See "Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)." The remaining proceeds from this offering, if any, will be used for general corporate purposes.

The foregoing represents our current intentions to use and allocate the proceeds of this offering based upon our present plans and business conditions. Our management, however, will have significant flexibility and discretion to apply the proceeds from the issuance of the Notes. If an unforeseen event occurs or business conditions change, we may use the proceeds from the issuance of the Notes differently than as described in this prospectus supplement.

In utilizing the proceeds from the issuance of the Notes, under PRC laws and regulations, we, as an offshore holding company, are permitted to provide funding to our PRC subsidiaries and consolidated affiliates only through loans or capital contributions and to other entities only through loans. Subject to satisfaction of applicable government registration and approval requirements, we may extend inter-company loans to our PRC subsidiaries and consolidated affiliates or make additional capital contributions to our PRC subsidiaries and consolidated affiliates to fund their capital expenditures or working capital. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain these government registrations or approvals on a timely basis, if at all.

EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION

China

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated, certain information concerning the exchange rates between Renminbi and U.S. dollars. The exchange rates reflect the exchange rates as set forth in the H.10 statistical release of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States.

	Noon Buying Rate			
Period	End	Average(1)	High	Low
		(RMB per	US\$1.00)	
2013	6.0537	6.1412	6.2438	6.0537
2014	6.2046	6.1704	6.2591	6.0402
2015	6.4778	6.2869	6.4896	6.1870
2016	6.9430	6.6549	6.9580	6.4480
2017	6.5063	6.7350	6.9575	6.4773
October 2017	6.6328	_	6.6533	6.5712
November 2017	6.6090	_	6.6385	6.5967
December 2017	6.5063	_	6.6210	6.5063
January 2018	6.2841	_	6.5263	6.2841
February 2018	6.3280	_	6.3471	6.2649
March 2018	6.2726	_	6.3565	6.2685
April (through April 6, 2018)	6.3045	_	6.3045	6.2785

Note:

Hong Kong

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain information concerning the exchange rates between Hong Kong dollars and U.S. dollars. The exchange rates reflect the exchange rates as set forth in the H.10 statistical release of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States.

	Noon Buying Rate			
Period	End	Average(1)	High	Low
		(HK\$ per	US\$1.00)	
2013	7.7539	7.7565	7.7654	7.7503
2014	7.7531	7.7554	7.7669	7.7495
2015	7.7507	7.7519	7.7686	7.7495
2016	7.7534	7.7618	7.8270	7.7505
2017	7.8128	7.7950	7.8267	7.7540
October 2017	7.8015	_	7.8106	7.7996
November 2017	7.8093	_	7.8118	7.7955
December 2017	7.8128	_	7.8228	7.8050
January 2018	7.8210	_	7.8230	7.8161
February 2018	7.8262	_	7.8267	7.8183
March 2018	7.8484	_	7.8486	7.8275
April (through April 6, 2018)	7.8482	_	7.8490	7.8482

Note:

⁽¹⁾ Averages for annual periods are calculated by averaging month-end rates for the relevant year. Monthly averages are calculated by averaging daily rates for the relevant month.

⁽¹⁾ Averages for annual periods are calculated by averaging month-end rates for the relevant year. Monthly averages are calculated by averaging daily rates for the relevant month.

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our consolidated capitalization under IFRS as of December 31, 2017:

- on an actual basis; and
- on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the receipt and application of the US\$ 1,437.5 million estimated net proceeds from this offering. See "Use of Proceeds."

This table should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

	As of December 31, 2017			
	Actual		As Adjusted(1)	
	RMB	US\$(2)	RMB	US\$(2)
	(in Millions)			
Cash and cash equivalents	12,572	1,932	21,925	3,370
Time deposits with maturity over three months	15,380	2,364	15,380	2,364
Current loans and borrowings:				
Short-term loans and borrowings	8,779	1,349	8,779	1,349
Current portion of long-term bank loans	212	33	212	33
Current portion of long-term notes	4,901	753	4,901	753
Total current loans and borrowings	13,892	2,136	13,892	2,136
Non-current loans and borrowings:				
Notes offered hereby	_	_	9,353	1,438
Long-term notes (net of current portion)	117,079	17,995	117,079	17,995
Other long-term borrowings (net of current portion)	1,279	197	1,279	197
Total non-current loans and borrowings	118,358	18,191	127,711	19,630
Equity:				
Issued capital	43,081	6,621	43,081	6,621
Reserves	336,894	51,780	336,894	51,780
Total equity	379,975	58,401	379,975	58,401
Total capitalization ⁽³⁾	498,333	76,592	507,686	78,031

Notes:

- (1) The "as adjusted" columns reflect estimated proceeds received from the issuance of the Notes.
- (2) An exchange rate of US\$1 = RMB6.5063 has been used. This usage of these exchange rates is for illustration only and does not constitute a representation that any amount has been, could have been or may be exchanged or converted at the above rates or at all other rates at all.
- (3) Total capitalization equals the sum of total non-current loans and borrowings and total equity.

There has been no material change in our consolidated capitalization since December 31, 2017.

DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES AND GUARANTEES

The following description is only a summary of the material terms of the Notes and the Guarantees and does not purport to be complete. The Notes will be issued pursuant to an indenture dated as of May 5, 2015 (the "Indenture") among the Issuer, the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (the "trustee"), initial paying and transfer agent and initial registrar. A form of the Indenture has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus form a part. A copy of the Notes, the Guarantees and the Indenture will also be available for inspection at the corporate trust office of the trustee. You may also request copies of the Indenture from us at our address set forth under "Where You Can Find More Information About Us" in this prospectus supplement. The holders of each series of the Notes will be bound by, and be deemed to have notice of, all the provisions of the Indenture. The following summary of certain provisions of the Notes, the Guarantees and the Indenture is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to the detailed provisions of the Notes, the Guarantees and the Indenture and to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended. Terms and expressions used in this section and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Notes and the Indenture. This summary supplements the description of the debt securities in the accompanying prospectus and, to the extent it is inconsistent, replaces the description in the accompanying prospectus.

General

The 2028 Notes will be issued by the Issuer in an initial aggregate principal amount of US\$1,000,000,000 and will mature on May 2, 2028, and the 2023 Notes will be issued by the Issuer in an initial aggregate principal amount of US\$450,000,000 and will mature on May 2, 2023, unless any of the 2028 Notes or the 2023 Notes are redeemed earlier pursuant to the respective terms thereof and of the Indenture. The 2028 Notes and the 2023 Notes are collectively referred to as the Notes.

The 2028 Notes will bear interest at the rate of 4.375% per annum, and the 2023 Notes will bear interest at the rate of 3.750% per annum. Interest on all series of Notes will accrue from May 2, 2018 or from and including the most recent Interest Payment Date (as defined below) to which interest has been paid or provided for, to and excluding the next Interest Payment Date or the maturity date, payable semi-annually in arrears on May 2 and November 2 in each year (each, an "Interest Payment Date"), commencing on November 2, 2018, to the persons in whose names the Notes are registered at the close of business (whether or not a Business Day) on April 17 and October 18, respectively (each an "Interest Record Date") immediately preceding an Interest Payment Date. Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months.

In any case where the date of maturity of the principal of or interest on the Notes or the date fixed for redemption of the Notes is not a Business Day, then payment of principal or interest shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day, with the same force and effect as if made on the date of maturity or the date fixed for redemption, as the case may be, and no interest shall accrue for the period after such date. "Business Day" means a day in The City of New York, Hong Kong and the applicable place of payment other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which banking institutions are authorized or obligated by law or executive order to remain closed.

Notwithstanding the above, so long as the Global Note is held on behalf of Euroclear or Clearstream, each payment in respect of the Global Note will be made to the person shown as the holder in the Register at the close of business of the relevant clearing system on the Clearing System Business Day before the due date for such payments, where "Clearing System Business Day" means a weekday (Monday to Friday, inclusive) except December 25 and January 1.

The Notes shall be denominated in minimum principal amounts of US\$200,000 and in integral multiples of US\$1,000 in excess thereof.

The Notes will be the direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer, and rank pari passu with all of its other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations (other than obligations preferred by

applicable law) and senior in priority of payment and in all other respects to all of its other Indebtedness that is designated as subordinate or junior in right of payment to the Notes.

The Notes are unconditionally guaranteed as to the payment of the principal and interest in respect thereof and all other amounts payable under the Notes by the Issuer as evidenced by the Guarantee set forth in the indenture. Each Guarantee is the direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and unsecured obligation of the Company and will rank pari passu with all of its other unsecured and unsubordinated obligations (other than obligations preferred by applicable law) and senior in priority of payment and in all other respects to all of its other Indebtedness that is designated as subordinate or junior in right of payment to the Guarantee.

The principal of, interest on, and all other amounts payable under, the Notes will be payable at the Issuer's office or agency (which initially will be the corporate trust office of The Bank of New York Mellon as paying agent, located at 101 Barclay Street, New York, NY 10286 United States of America), and the Notes may be exchanged or transferred at the Issuer's office or agency (which initially will be the office of The Bank of New York Mellon as registrar, located at 101 Barclay Street, New York, NY 10286 United States of America) or, in each case, at such other location or locations as the Issuer, in consultation with the trustee, may designate. The principal of and interest on the Notes will be made by wire transfer or otherwise in immediately available funds and payable in U.S. dollars or in such other coin or currency of the United States of America as of the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. Payments of interest and principal with respect to interests in the global notes will be credited to the respective accounts of the holders of such interests with DTC or its participants, including Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. See "—Notes; Delivery and Form."

Further Issues

The 2028 Notes will be issued in an initial aggregate principal amount of US\$1,000,000,000 and the 2023 Notes will be issued in an initial aggregate principal amount of US\$450,000,000. The Company and the Issuer may, however, from time to time, without the consent of the holders of the Notes, create and issue pursuant to the Indenture, additional Notes of a series having the same terms and conditions under the Indenture as the previously outstanding Notes in all respects, except for issue date, issue price, and amount of the first payment of interest thereon. Additional Notes issued may be consolidated with and form a single series with the previously outstanding Notes of the relevant series; provided, however, that such additional Notes will not be issued under the same CUSIP, ISIN, Common Code or other identifying number as the outstanding Notes of that series unless such additional Notes are fungible with such outstanding Notes for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Optional Redemption

Unless earlier redeemed in the limited circumstances set forth below, the 2028 Notes will mature on May 2, 2028 and the 2023 Notes will mature on May 2, 2023 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof. Except as set forth in the accompanying prospectus or below, the Notes are not redeemable at the Issuer's option.

The Company or the Issuer may, at the Company's or the Issuer's option, at any time and from time to time redeem, as applicable, any of the 2028 Notes or the 2023 Notes, in whole or in part, on not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' prior notice mailed to the holders of such Notes, with a copy provided to the trustee and the paying agent. The applicable Notes will be redeemable at a redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount of the applicable Notes to be redeemed and (2) the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the applicable Notes to be redeemed (not including interest accrued to the date of redemption), discounted to the date of redemption on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate plus 25 basis points in the case of the 2028 Notes or 20 basis points in the case of 2023 Notes, plus, in each case, accrued and unpaid interest on the applicable Notes to be redeemed, if any, to the date of redemption.

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of the Notes to be redeemed. "Independent Investment Banker" means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by the Company.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means, with respect to any redemption date, (1) the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for such redemption date, after excluding the highest and lowest of such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, or (2) if the Company obtains fewer than three such Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all quotations obtained.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means each of any three investment banks of recognized standing that is a primary U.S. government securities dealer in the United States, selected by the Company in good faith.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, with respect to each Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption date, the average, as determined by the Company, of the bid and asked prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Company by such Reference Treasury Dealer as of 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the third Business Day preceding such date of redemption.

"Treasury Rate" means, with respect to any date of redemption, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity (computed as of the third Business Day immediately preceding such redemption date) of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for such date of redemption.

Notification Regarding Acquisition of Notes by Related Persons

By acceptance of its Note or its interest in a Note, each holder or beneficial owner that is considered a "foreign person" that is a "related party" with respect to the Issuer or its shareholder under Section 59A(g) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code") agrees to notify the Issuer of its status as such within 30 days of the acquisition of Notes or a beneficial interest therein (or if such holder or beneficial owner becomes a related party at a later date, within 30 days from such later date) so that Issuer or its shareholder can comply with their reporting requirements under Code section 6038A. Generally, a foreign person that is a related party for these purposes includes any non-U.S. person that is actually or constructively a 25% owner of the Issuer (by vote or value), a person related (within the meaning of Section 267(b) or Section 707(b)(1) of the Code) to the Issuer or a 25% owner thereof, or any person related to the Issuer within the meaning of Section 482 of the Code.

Notification to the Issuer shall be delivered, mailed or emailed to Nexen Energy ULC at 801 7th Ave SW, Calgary, AB, Canada T2P 3P7 or at Governance@nexencnoocltd.com; Attention: Treasurer.

No Sinking Fund

The Notes will not be entitled to the benefit of any sinking fund.

Notes; Delivery and Form

The statements set forth herein include summaries of certain rules and operating procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg which will affect transfers of interests in the global notes.

The Notes will be represented by one or more global notes, fully registered without interest coupons, which will be deposited with The Bank of New York Mellon, as custodian for DTC (in such capacity, the "Custodian") and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, for the accounts of its participants, including Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

The Notes will be issued in minimum denominations of US\$200,000 and in integral multiples of US\$1,000 in excess of that amount.

Investors may hold their interests in the global notes directly through DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear, as the case may be, if they are participants in such systems, or indirectly through organizations which are participants in such systems. Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear will hold interests in the global notes on behalf of their participants through customers' securities accounts in their respective names on the books of their respective depositaries, which are participants in DTC.

Transfers between participants in DTC (the "Participants") will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with DTC rules. Transfers between participants in Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear ("Clearstream Participants" and "Euroclear Participants," respectively) will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with their respective rules and operating procedures.

Persons who are not Participants may beneficially own interests in the global notes held by DTC only through Participants or Indirect Participants (as defined below) (including Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg). So long as Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC, is the registered owner of the global notes, Cede & Co., for all purposes, will be considered the sole holder of such Notes.

Payment of interest on and principal of the global notes will be made to Cede & Co., the nominee for DTC, as the registered owner of the global notes by wire transfer of immediately available funds. None of the Company, the Issuer, the trustee or paying agent will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in the global notes or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interest.

The Issuer has been informed by DTC that, upon receipt of any payment of interest on or the redemption price of the global notes, DTC will credit Participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in the global notes as shown on the records of DTC. Payments of interest on and principal of the Notes held through Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear will be credited to the cash accounts of Clearstream Participants or Euroclear Participants, as the case may be, in accordance with the relevant system's rules and procedures. Payments by Participants to owners of beneficial interests in the global notes held through such Participants will be the responsibility of such Participants, as is the case with securities held by broker-dealers, either directly or through nominees, for the accounts of customers and registered in "street name."

Because DTC can only act on behalf of Participants, who in turn act on behalf of Indirect Participants and certain banks, the ability of a person having a beneficial interest in the global notes to pledge such interest to persons or entities that do not participate in the DTC system, or to otherwise take actions in respect of such interest, may be affected by the lack of a physical certificate. The laws of some states require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive form. Such limits and such laws may impair the ability to own, transfer or pledge beneficial interests in the global notes.

So long as the Notes are represented by global notes and such global notes are held on behalf of DTC or any other clearing system, such clearing system or its nominee will be considered the sole holder of the Notes represented by the applicable global notes for all purposes under the indenture, including, without limitation, obtaining consents and waivers thereunder, and none of the Company, the Issuer or the trustee shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. None of the Company, the Issuer, the trustee or the registrar shall have any responsibility or obligation with respect to the accuracy of any records maintained by any clearing system or any Participant of such clearing system. The clearing systems will take actions on behalf of their Participants (and any such Participants will take actions on behalf of any Indirect Participants) in accordance with their standard procedures. To the extent that any clearing system acts upon the direction of the holders of the beneficial interests in the applicable global note and such beneficial holders give conflicting instructions, the applicable clearing system may take conflicting actions in accordance with such instructions.

DTC has advised the Issuer that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Notes (including, without limitation, the presentation of Notes for exchange) only at the direction of one or more Participants and only in respect of the principal amount of the Notes represented by the global note as to which such Participant or Participants have given such direction.

Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear, as the case may be, will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Notes (including, without limitation, the presentation of Notes for exchange) on behalf of a Clearstream Participant or a Euroclear Participant only in accordance with its relevant rules and procedures and subject to its ability to effect such actions through DTC.

Although DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfers of interests in the global notes among Participants of DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures, and such procedures may be discontinued at any time. None of the Company, the Issuer or the trustee will have any responsibility for the performance by DTC, Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear, or their respective Participants or Indirect Participants, of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures governing their operations.

DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the Uniform Commercial Code and a "Clearing Agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC was created to hold securities for its Participants and facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions between Participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of its Participants, thereby eliminating the need for the physical movement of certificates. Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations and may include certain other organizations. Indirect access to the DTC system is available to others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants").

Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg hold securities for participating organizations. They also facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions between their respective Participants through electronic book-entry changes in the accounts of such Participants. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg provide various services to their Participants, including the safekeeping, administration, clearance, settlement, lending and borrowing of internationally traded securities. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg interface with domestic securities markets. Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg participants are financial institutions such as underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and certain other organizations. Indirect access to Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg is also available to others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg Participant, either directly or indirectly.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system, as well as information regarding Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, has been obtained from sources that we believe to be reliable, but neither we nor any underwriter takes responsibility for its accuracy or completeness. We assume no responsibility for the performance by DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or their respective Participants or Indirect Participants of their respective obligations, including obligations that they have under the rules and procedures that govern their operations.

Individual Notes

If DTC is at any time unwilling or unable to continue as depositary and a successor depositary is not appointed by the Issuer within 90 days or if there shall have occurred and be continuing an Event of Default (as described in the attached Prospectus) with respect to the Notes, the Issuer will issue individual Notes in certificated, fully registered form in exchange for the global notes. The holder of such individual Notes in certificated form may transfer or exchange such Notes by surrendering them at the office of the registrar.

TAXATION

The statements herein regarding taxation are based on the laws in force as of the date of this prospectus supplement and are subject to any changes in laws occurring after such date, which could be made on a retroactive basis. The following summary does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all of the tax considerations that may be relevant to a decision of a prospective purchaser to acquire or dispose of the Notes and does not purport to deal with the tax consequences applicable to all categories of investors, some of which (such as dealers in securities or commodities) may be subject to special rules. Prospective purchasers are advised to consult their own tax advisors concerning the overall tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Notes.

The PRC

Pursuant to the Notice on Issued about the Determination of Chinese-Controlled Enterprises Registered Abroad as Resident Enterprises on the Basis of Actual Management (the "Notice") issued by the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC (the "SAT") on April 22, 2009, the Enterprise Income Tax Law and the Implementation Rules, which both took effect from January 1, 2008, enterprises established outside of the PRC whose "de facto management bodies" are located in the PRC are considered Chinese resident enterprises ("CREs"). According to a formal reply from the SAT in October 18, 2010, the Company is deemed as a CRE pursuant to the provisions of the Notice, the Enterprise Income Tax Law and the Implementation Rules. Accordingly, the Company is obliged to withhold PRC income tax of up to 10% on payments of interest under the Guarantees to non-PRC enterprise holders of Notes and of up to 20% on payments of interest to non-PRC individual holders of Notes. Applicable tax treaties may provide for lower rates.

As of the date of this prospectus supplement, the Issuer has not been informed by the SAT that it is deemed a CRE. If the Issuer is deemed to be a CRE for enterprise income tax purposes, among other things, the Issuer would be subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25% on its worldwide income. Furthermore, the Issuer would be obligated to withhold PRC income tax of up to 10% on payments of interest to non-PRC enterprise holders of Notes and of up to 20% on payments of interest to non-PRC individual holders of Notes. Under the terms of the Notes, if the Issuer is treated as a PRC resident enterprise by the SAT and is required to withhold tax on payments due under the Notes, it will, subject to certain exceptions, be required to pay such additional amounts as will result in receipt by each holder of Notes of such amounts as would have been received by such holder of Notes had no such withholding been required. See "Description of the Debt Securities and Guarantees—Additional Amounts" in the accompanying prospectus. In addition, if the Issuer is treated as a CRE, any gain realized by non-resident enterprise holders of Notes from the disposition of the Notes may be regarded as derived from sources within the PRC and accordingly would be subject to 10% enterprise income tax, and any gain realized by non-resident individual holders of Notes from the disposition of the Notes may be regarded as derived from sources within the PRC and accordingly would be subject to 20% individual income tax. Applicable tax treaties may provide for lower tax rates with respect to any PRC tax liability.

Hong Kong

The following summary contains a description of the principal tax laws of Hong Kong, as in effect on the date of this prospectus supplement, and is subject to any change in the tax laws of Hong Kong that may come into effect after such date (which may have retroactive effect).

No Hong Kong tax will be required to be withheld from payments of principal or interest on the Notes or payments by us in respect thereof under the Guarantee.

Interest on the Notes is not subject to Hong Kong profits tax, except where the interest is received by or accrued to a financial institution (as defined in the Inland Revenue Ordinance) through or from the carrying on by the financial institution of its business in Hong Kong.

Hong Kong profits tax is not chargeable in respect of capital gains from the sale of property such as the Notes. However, trading profits from the sale, disposal or redemption of the Notes by persons carrying on a trade, profession or business in Hong Kong where such profits are derived from or arise in Hong Kong from such, trade, profession or business are chargeable to profits tax currently at the rate of 16.5% on corporations and 15% on individuals. Profits from the sale of Notes affected on the HKSE will be considered to be derived from or arise in Hong Kong. Liability for Hong Kong profits tax would thus arise in respect of trading gains from the sale, disposal or redemption of the Notes realized by persons carrying on a business of trading or dealing in securities in Hong Kong.

No Hong Kong stamp duty is payable on the sale, purchase or other disposal of bonds or notes denominated otherwise than in the currency of Hong Kong, provided that the bonds or notes are not redeemable, and may not at the option of any person be redeemed, in the currency of Hong Kong. Therefore, a sale or purchase or other disposal of the Notes will not be subject to Hong Kong stamp duty.

U.S. Federal Income Taxation

The following are material U.S. federal income tax consequences to the U.S. Holders and Non-U.S. Holders described below of owning and disposing of Notes purchased in this offering at the "issue price," which for each series of Notes will equal the first price at which a substantial amount of such Notes is sold to the public (not including bond houses, brokers or similar persons acting in the capacity of underwriters, placement agents or wholesalers), and held as capital assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

This discussion does not describe all of the tax consequences that may be relevant to you in light of your particular circumstances, including the possible effects of Section 451(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), alternative minimum tax and Medicare contribution tax consequences, and differing tax consequences that may apply if you are, for instance:

- a financial institution;
- a dealer or one of certain electing traders;
- holding Notes as part of a "straddle" or integrated transaction;
- a U.S. Holder (as defined below) whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar;
- an entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes;
- a tax-exempt entity; or
- a U.S. Holder holding the Notes in connection with a trade or business conducted outside the United States.

If an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds the Notes, the tax treatment of a partner will generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. A partnership or a partner of a partnership holding the Notes should consult its own tax advisor.

This summary is based on the Code, administrative pronouncements, judicial decisions and final, temporary and proposed Treasury Regulations, as well as the income tax treaty between the United States and the PRC (the "Treaty"), all as of the date hereof, any of which may be repealed, revoked or modified (possibly with retroactive effect) so as to result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those discussed below. **Persons considering the purchase, ownership or disposition of Notes should consult their tax advisers concerning the application of the U.S. federal income tax laws to their particular situations, as well as any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, local, or non-U.S. taxing jurisdiction.**

Tax consequences to U.S. Holders

This section applies only to a U.S. Holder of a Note. You are a U.S. Holder for purposes of this discussion if for U.S. federal income tax purposes you are a beneficial owner of a Note and are:

- a citizen or individual resident of the United States:
- a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state therein or the District of Columbia; or
- an estate or trust the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source.

It is expected, and this discussion assumes, that the Notes of each series will be issued without "original issue discount" for U.S. federal income tax purposes. If, however, the principal amount of the Notes of any series exceeds their issue price by a specified *de minimis* amount or more, as determined under applicable Treasury Regulations, a U.S. Holder will be required to include that excess in income as original issue discount, as it accrues, in accordance with a constant-yield method based on a compounding of interest, before the receipt of cash attributable to this income.

Payments of interest. Stated interest paid on a Note will be taxable to you as ordinary interest income at the time it accrues or is received, in accordance with your method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Interest (including payments by the Company under the Guarantee) will generally be treated as U.S.-source income for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Sale or other taxable disposition of the Notes. You will generally recognize capital gain or loss upon the sale or other disposition of the Notes in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized and your tax basis in the Notes. The amount realized will not include any amount attributable to accrued interest, which will be treated as described above under "—Payments of interest." Your tax basis will generally equal your cost of the Notes. Gain or loss, if any, will be long-term capital gain or loss if at the time of sale or other disposition the Notes have been held for more than one year. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations. Any gain or loss will generally be U.S.-source gain or loss for foreign tax credit purposes.

As described in "Taxation—The PRC," gains from the disposition of Notes may be subject to PRC tax if the Issuer is considered to be a Chinese resident enterprise. If that were the case, your amount realized would include the gross amount of proceeds. Although gain realized on disposition of Notes would generally be characterized as U.S.-source income, if you are eligible for the benefits of the Treaty, you may be able to treat the gain as foreign-source gain for foreign tax credit purposes if the gain is subject to PRC tax. You should consult your tax adviser regarding the creditability of any PRC taxes on disposition of Notes.

Backup withholding and information reporting. You will be subject to information reporting requirements with respect to payments on the Notes and proceeds from a sale of the Notes if paid within the United States or through certain U.S.-related financial intermediaries, unless an exception applies. In addition, certain U.S. Holders may be subject to backup withholding in respect of those payments if you do not provide your taxpayer identification numbers and certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or provide proof of an applicable exemption. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules may be refunded or credited against your U.S. federal income tax liability, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the Internal Revenue Service (the "IRS").

Tax consequences to Non-U.S. Holders

This section applies only to a Non-U.S. Holder. You are a Non-U.S. Holder for purposes of this discussion if for U.S. federal income tax purposes you are a beneficial owner of a Note and are:

a nonresident alien individual;

- · a foreign corporation; or
- a foreign estate or trust.

You are not a Non-U.S. Holder for purposes of this discussion if you are a nonresident alien individual present in the United States for 183 days or more in the taxable year of disposition, or a former citizen or former resident of the United States, in either of which cases you should consult your tax adviser regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences of owning and disposing of a Note.

Payments on the Notes. Subject to the discussions below under "Backup withholding and information reporting" and "FATCA," payments of principal or interest to you on a Note will generally not be subject to U.S. federal income tax or withholding tax, provided that, in the case of interest:

- you do not own, actually or constructively (including through attribution as a result of being under common control with the Company), ten percent or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Issuer or the Company entitled to vote;
- you are not a controlled foreign corporation related, directly or indirectly, to the Issuer through stock ownership;
- you certify on a properly executed IRS Form W-8BEN or IRS Form W-8BEN-E (as applicable), under penalties of perjury, that you are not a United States person; and
- the interest is not effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States as
 described below.

If you cannot satisfy one of the first three requirements described above and interest on the Notes is not exempt from withholding because it is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States as described below, payments of interest on the Notes will be subject to withholding tax at a rate of 30%, or the rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty.

Sale or other taxable disposition of the Notes. You generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax on gain realized on a sale, redemption or other taxable disposition of the Notes, unless the gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States as described below, although any amounts attributable to accrued interest will be treated as described above under "—Payments on the Notes."

Effectively connected income. If interest or gain from a Note is effectively connected with your conduct of a trade or business in the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, is attributable to a U.S. permanent establishment or fixed base maintained by you), you will generally be taxed in the same manner as a U.S. Holder. In this case, you will be required to provide a properly executed IRS Form W-8ECI in order to claim an exemption from withholding tax on interest. You should consult your tax adviser with respect to other U.S. tax consequences of owning and disposing of Notes, including the possible imposition of a branch profits tax at a rate of 30% (or a lower treaty rate) if you are a corporation.

Backup withholding and information reporting. Information returns will be filed with the IRS in connection with payments of interest on the Notes. Unless you comply with certification procedures to establish that you are not a United States person, information returns may also be filed with the IRS in connection with payment of the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of a Note, and you may be subject to backup withholding on payments on the Notes or on the proceeds from a sale or other disposition of the Notes. The certification of non-U.S. status on an IRS Form W-8BEN or IRS Form W-8BEN-E (as applicable) described above will satisfy the certification requirements necessary to avoid backup withholding as well. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. The amount of any backup withholding from a payment to you will be allowed as a credit against your U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle you to a refund, provided that the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

FATCA

Legislation commonly referred to as "FATCA" generally imposes a withholding tax of 30% on payments to certain non-U.S. entities (including financial intermediaries) with respect to certain financial instruments, unless various U.S. information reporting and due diligence requirements have been satisfied. An intergovernmental agreement between the United States and the non-U.S. entity's jurisdiction may modify these requirements.

Withholding under these rules (if applicable) applies to payments of interest on the Notes and, after December 31, 2018, to payments of gross proceeds of the sale, exchange or retirement of the Notes. You should consult your tax advisers regarding the potential application of FATCA to the Notes.

UNDERWRITING (CONFLICTS OF INTEREST)

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in an underwriting agreement dated April 25, 2018 among us, the Issuer and the underwriters named below, and the underwriting agreement standard provisions filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus form a part, the Issuer has agreed to sell to each underwriter, and each underwriter has agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase from the Issuer, the principal amount of the Notes of each series set forth opposite its name below:

Underwriter	Principal Amount of 2028 Notes		Principal Amount of 2023 Notes	
Bank of China Limited	US\$	83,333,335	US\$	37,500,000
BOCI Asia Limited	US\$	83,333,335	US\$	37,500,000
Citigroup Global Markets Inc.	US\$	166,666,666	US\$	75,000,000
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC	US\$	166,666,666	US\$	75,000,000
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C	US\$	166,666,666	US\$	75,000,000
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited	US\$	166,666,666	US\$	75,000,000
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC	US\$	166,666,666	US\$	75,000,000
ICBC International Securities Limited	US\$	0	US\$	0
Mizuho Securities USA LLC	US\$	0	US\$	0
Natixis Securities Americas LLC	US\$	0	US\$	0
Société Générale	US\$	0	US\$	0
Total	US\$1	,000,000,000	US\$4	150,000,000

The underwriting agreement provides that the obligations of the underwriters to purchase the Notes are subject to certain conditions, including, among others, the receipt by the underwriters of documentation related to the issuance and settlement of the Notes, officer's certificates and legal opinions. The underwriters must purchase all the Notes if they purchase any of the Notes. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers to investors and to reject orders in whole or in part. The underwriting agreement may be terminated by the underwriters in certain circumstances prior to the delivery of and payment for the Notes.

We and the Issuer have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

The underwriters propose initially to offer part of the Notes of each series directly to the public at the offering prices set forth on the cover page of this prospectus supplement. After the initial offering of the Notes, the offering price may be changed.

Certain of the underwriters are not broker-dealers registered with the SEC. Therefore, to the extent that they intend to make any offers or sales of Notes in the United States, they will do so only through one or more registered broker-dealers in compliance with applicable securities laws and regulations and FINRA rules. Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. will offer the Notes in the United States through its registered broker-dealer affiliate Goldman, Sachs & Co. LLC, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited will offer the Notes in the United States through its registered broker-dealer affiliate HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. and Société Générale will offer the Notes in the United States through its registered broker-dealer affiliate SG Americas Securities, LLC.

Due to certain restrictions imposed under the US Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, none of ICBC International Securities Limited and its affiliates may underwrite, subscribe, agree to purchase or procure purchasers to purchase Notes that are offered or sold in the United States. None of ICBC International Securities Limited nor its affiliates will procure purchasers to purchase Notes that may be offered or sold in the United States. ICBC International Securities Limited and its affiliates shall offer and sell Notes constituting part of their allotment solely outside the United States in accordance with Regulation S under the Securities Act.

If a jurisdiction requires that the offering be made by a licensed broker or dealer and the underwriters or any affiliate of the underwriters is a licensed broker or dealer in that jurisdiction, the offering shall be deemed to be made by that underwriter or its affiliate on behalf of the Issuer in such jurisdiction.

The following table shows the underwriting discounts that we will pay to the underwriters in connection with this offering:

	Paid By Us
Per 2028 Note	0.200%
Per 2023 Note	0.200%
Total	US\$2,900,000

Expenses associated with this offering to be paid by us, other than underwriting commissions and discounts, are estimated to be US\$2,770,000.

New Issue of Notes

The Notes are a new issue of securities with no established trading market. Application has been made to the HKSE for listing of, and permission to deal in, the Notes by way of debt issue to professional investors only. We have been advised by the underwriters that they presently intend to make a market in the Notes after completion of the offering. However, they are under no obligation to do so and may discontinue any market-making activities at any time without any notice. We cannot assure the liquidity of the trading market for the Notes. If an active trading market for the Notes does not develop, the market price and liquidity of the Notes may be adversely affected. If the Notes are traded, they may trade at a discount from their initial offering price, depending on prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, our operating performance and financial condition, general economic conditions and other factors.

In addition, in respect of the 2023 Notes, five institutional investors are each expected to purchase more than 5.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes, including one investor who is expected to purchase 22.0%, at the initial public offering price and on the same terms as the other 2023 Notes are being offered. These five investors are expected in aggregate to initially hold approximately 67.6% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes. Similarly, in respect of the 2028 Notes, six institutional investors are each expected to purchase more than 5.0% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2028 Notes, including one investor who is expected to purchase 38.0%, at the initial public offering price and on the same terms as the other 2028 Notes are being offered. These six investors are expected in aggregate to initially hold approximately 66.6% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2028 Notes. See "Risk Factors – Risks Relating to the Notes and the Guarantees – The Notes may initially be sold to a small number of investors; accordingly, a liquid trading market for the Notes may not develop. In addition, one or more of the initial investors may own a significant percentage of the Notes and may be able to exercise certain rights and powers on behalf of all holders of the Notes." See also "– Other Relationships" below.

Settlement

We expect that delivery of the Notes will be made to investors on or about the closing date specified on the cover page of this prospectus supplement, which will be the fifth business day following the date of the pricing of the Notes (such settlement being referred to as "T+5"). Under Rule 15c6-1 under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, trades in the secondary market are generally required to settle in two business days, unless the parties to any such trade expressly agree otherwise. Accordingly, purchasers who wish to trade Notes on the date of pricing or on the next succeeding business day will be required, by virtue of the fact that the Notes will initially settle in T+5, to specify an alternate settlement arrangement at the time of any such trade to prevent a failed settlement. Purchasers of the Notes who wish to trade the Notes prior to their date of delivery hereunder should consult their advisors.

No Sales of Similar Securities

We and the Issuer have each agreed that we will not, for a period of 30 days after the date of closing (which is expected to be the fifth business day following the date of this prospectus supplement), without first obtaining the prior written consent of the underwriters, offer, sell or contract to sell, or otherwise dispose of, directly or indirectly, or announce the offering of, any debt securities issued or guaranteed by us or the Issuer having a tenor of more than one year, except for the Notes sold to the underwriters pursuant to the underwriting agreement and any loans, including bilateral or syndicated loans or club deals. The underwriters in their sole discretion may release any of the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time without notice.

Short Positions and Stabilizing Transactions

In connection with the offering, each underwriter (or its affiliates) may purchase and sell the Notes in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, purchases on the open market to cover positions created by short sales and stabilizing purchases. Short sales involve the sale by an underwriter of a greater principal amount of the Notes than they are required to purchase in the offering. An underwriter must close out any short position by purchasing the Notes in the open market. A short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the Notes in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering. Stabilizing transactions involve bids to purchase the Notes so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

Similar to other purchase transactions, an underwriter's purchases to cover the syndicate short sales and stabilizing purchases may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of the Notes or preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of the Notes. As a result, the price of the Notes may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market.

None of us, the Issuer, or any of the underwriters makes any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of the Notes. In addition, none of us, the Issuer, or any of the underwriters makes any representation that the underwriters will engage in these transactions or that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice at any time. No assurance can be given as to the liquidity of, or the trading market for, the Notes.

The address of Bank of China Limited is 7th Floor, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong. The address of BOCI Asia Limited is 26th Floor, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong. The address of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. is 388 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013, United States of America. The address of Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC is Eleven Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10010, United States of America. The address of Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. is 68th Floor, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. The address of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited is Level 17, HSBC Main Building, 1 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. The address of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC is 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10179, United States of America. The address of ICBC International Securities Limited is 37/F ICBC Tower, 3 Garden Road, Hong Kong. The address of Mizuho Securities USA LLC is 320 Park Avenue – 12th Floor, New York, New York 10022, United States of America. The address of Natixis Securities Americas LLC is 1251 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10020, United States of America. The address of Société Générale is 34/F Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong.

Sales Outside the United States

Notice to Prospective Investors in the EEA

The Notes which are the subject of the offering contemplated by this prospectus supplement have not been offered, sold or otherwise made available and will not be offered, sold or otherwise made available in relation thereto to any retail investor in the European Economic Area. For the purposes of this provision, the expression "retail investor" means a person who is one (or more) of the following:

i. a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID II"); or

ii. a customer within the meaning of Directive 2002/92/EC (as amended), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point (10) of Article 4(1) of MiFID II.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Italy

The offering of the Notes has not been registered with the Italian Securities and Exchange Commission (*Commissione Nazionale per le Società e la Borsa*, the "CONSOB") pursuant to Italian securities legislation and, accordingly, no Notes may be offered, sold or delivered, nor may copies of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, or any other document relating to the Notes be distributed in the Republic of Italy ("Italy"), except:

- (i) to qualified investors (*investitori qualificati*), pursuant to Article 100 of Legislative Decree no. 58 of February 24, 1998 (the "Consolidated Financial Services Act") and Article 34-ter, paragraph 1, letter
 (b) of CONSOB regulation No. 11971 of May 14, 1999 (the "CONSOB Regulation"), all as amended; or
- (ii) in any other circumstances where an express exemption from compliance with the restrictions on offers to the public applies, as provided under Article 100 of the Consolidated Financial Services Act and Article 34-ter of the CONSOB Regulation.

Moreover, and subject to the foregoing, any offer, sale or delivery of the Notes or distribution of copies of this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, or any other document relating to the Notes in Italy under (i) or (ii) above must be:

- (i) made by an investment firm, bank or financial intermediary permitted to conduct such activities in Italy in accordance with the Consolidated Financial Services Act, Legislative Decree No. 385 of September 1, 1993 (the "Banking Act"), CONSOB Regulation No. 20307 of February 15, 2018, all as amended;
- (ii) in compliance with Article 129 of the Banking Act, as amended from time to time, and the implementing guidelines of the Bank of Italy, as amended from time to time, pursuant to which the Bank of Italy may request information on the offering or issue of securities in Italy; and
- (iii) in compliance with any securities, tax, exchange control and any other applicable laws and regulations, including any limitation or requirement which may be imposed from time to time, inter alia, by CONSOB or the Bank of Italy.

Any investor purchasing the Notes in the offering is solely responsible for ensuring that any offer or resale of the Notes it purchased in the offering occurs in compliance with applicable Italian laws and regulations.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

No invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "FSMA")) received by the underwriters in connection with the issue or sale of any Notes may be communicated in circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us or the Issuer. All applicable provisions of the FSMA must be complied with respect to anything done or to be done by underwriters in relation to the Notes in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Hong Kong

You are advised to exercise caution in relation to the offer. If you are in any doubt about any of the contents of this document, you should obtain independent professional advice. The Notes are only available in Hong Kong or to persons resident in Hong Kong who are (a) "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance; or (b) acquiring the Notes in circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" as defined in the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance. Each purchaser of the Notes in the United States who is a resident of Hong Kong, by accepting delivery of this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, will be

deemed to have represented, agreed and acknowledged that (a) it is a "professional investor" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) of Hong Kong and any rules made under that Ordinance; or (b) it is acquiring the Notes in circumstances which do not result in the document being a "prospectus" as defined in the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) of Hong Kong or which do not constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of that Ordinance.

No advertisement, invitation or document relating to the Notes, which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to be accessed or read by, the public of Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) has been issued or had in possession for the purposes of issue or will be issued or had in possession for the purposes of issue, whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere, other than with respect to Notes which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside of Hong Kong or only to "professional investors" as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made under that Ordinance.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Japan

The Notes offered in this prospectus supplement have not been registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan (Act No. 25 of 1948, as amended, the "Financial Instruments and Exchange Act"). The Notes have not been offered or sold and will not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the account of any resident of Japan (which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan), or to others for re-offering or re-sale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan except (i) pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act and (ii) in compliance with any other applicable requirements of Japanese laws and regulations.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the PRC

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute a public offer of the Notes, whether by way of sale or subscription, in the PRC. Except as permitted by the securities laws of the PRC, the Notes are not being offered or sold and may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in the PRC to or for the benefit of, legal or natural persons of the PRC.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Singapore

This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus have not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus, and any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the Notes may not be circulated or distributed, nor may the Notes be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the "SFA"), (ii) to a relevant person pursuant to Section 275(1), or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable provision of the SFA, in each case subject to compliance with conditions set forth in the SFA.

Where the Notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is:

- a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole
 business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by one or more
 individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or
- a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor, securities (as defined in Section 239(1) of the SFA) of that corporation or the beneficiaries' rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferred within six months after that corporation or that trust has acquired the Notes pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA except:

- to an institutional investor or to a relevant person defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA, or to any person arising from an offer referred to in Section 275(1A) or Section 276(4)(i)(B) of the SFA;
- where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer;
- where the transfer is by operation of law; or
- as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA; or
- as specified in Regulation 32 of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005 of Singapore.

Other Relationships

The underwriters and their affiliates have in the past engaged, and may in the future engage, in transactions with and perform services, including financial advisory and investment banking services, for us, the Issuer and our respective affiliates in the ordinary course of business, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. We, the Issuer and our respective affiliates may enter into hedging or other derivative transactions as part of our risk management strategies with one or more of the underwriters, which may include transactions relating to our obligations under the Notes. Our and the Issuer' obligations under these transactions may be secured by cash or other collateral.

The underwriters or certain of their affiliates may purchase the Notes and be allocated the Notes for asset management and/or proprietary purposes but not with a view to distribution. In particular, affiliates of Bank of China Limited are in aggregate expected to purchase approximately 20.4% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2023 Notes and approximately 7.6% of the aggregate principal amount of the 2028 Notes for asset management and/or proprietary purposes and not with a view to distribution. See "– New Issue of Notes" above.

The underwriters or their respective affiliates may purchase the Notes for their own account and enter into transactions, including credit derivatives, such as asset swaps, repackaging and credit default swaps relating to the Notes and/or other securities of us, the Issuer or our respective subsidiaries or associates at the same time as the offer and sale of the Notes or in secondary market transactions. Such transactions would be carried out as bilateral trades with selected counterparties and separately from any existing sale or resale of the Notes to which this prospectus supplement relates (notwithstanding that such selected counterparties may also be purchasers of the Notes). Certain of the underwriters or their affiliates that have a lending relationship with us routinely hedge their credit exposure to us consistent with their customary risk management policies. Typically, such underwriters and their affiliates would hedge such exposure by entering into transactions which consist of either the purchase of credit default swaps or the creation of short positions in our securities, including potentially the Notes offered hereby. Any such short positions could adversely affect future trading prices of the Notes offered hereby. The underwriters and their respective affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research views in respect of such securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions in such securities and instruments.

Certain of the underwriters or their affiliates have a lending relationship with us. In connection with certain outstanding borrowings of our wholly-owned subsidiary Nexen Energy Capital Management U.S.A. Inc., Citibank, N.A., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and several other financial institutions acted as original lenders. The proceeds from this offering will be applied to pay a portion of our borrowings under these loan facilities, and as a result, the affiliates of Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC named above may receive a portion of the net proceeds from the sales of the Notes.

Conflicts of Interest

Because Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC are underwriters in this offering and their affiliates named above may receive more than 5% of the net proceeds from the sales of the Notes, a "conflict of interest" is deemed to exist under FINRA Rule 5121. Accordingly, this offering will be made in compliance with the applicable provisions of FINRA Rule 5121 and such underwriters will not sell any of the Notes to discretionary accounts without the specific written approval of the account holder.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters with respect to the Notes and the Guarantees will be passed upon for us by Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, New York, New York, as to matters of United States federal securities and New York State law, by Davis Polk & Wardwell, Hong Kong, as to matters of Hong Kong law, respectively. Certain legal matters with respect to the Notes and the Guarantees will be passed upon for the underwriters by Linklaters, as to matters of United States federal securities and New York State law, and by Jun He Law Offices Beijing, China, as to matters of PRC law.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this prospectus supplement by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports, which are incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Certain reserve information relating to our oil and gas reserves included in our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017 was based in part upon reserve reports prepared by independent consultants Ryder Scott Company, L.P., Gaffney, Cline & Associates (Consultants) Pte Ltd., RPS, McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. and DeGolyer and MacNaughton. We have incorporated this information in this prospectus supplement by reference to such annual report and included certain of this information in this prospectus supplement in reliance on the authority of such firms as experts in estimating proved oil and gas reserves.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION ABOUT US

This prospectus supplement is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about us. The rules and regulations of the SEC allow us to omit some of the information included in the registration statement from this prospectus supplement. In addition, we are subject to the periodic reporting and other informational requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, in accordance with this act, we file reports, including annual reports on Form 20-F, and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any of this information in the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can obtain information on the operation of the SEC's Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

The SEC also maintains an Internet web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers, like us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we file with or furnish to them. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. Each document incorporated by reference is current only as of the date of such document, and the incorporation by reference of such documents shall not create any implication that there has been no change in our affairs since the date thereof or that the information contained therein is current as of any time subsequent to its date. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus supplement and should be read with the same care. When we update the information contained in documents that have been incorporated by reference by making future filings with the SEC, the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement is considered to be automatically updated and superseded. In other words, in the case of a conflict or inconsistency between information contained in this prospectus supplement and information incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement, you should rely on the information contained in the document that was filed later.

We incorporate by reference the documents listed below:

- Our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on April 19, 2018 and Amendment No.1 to Form 20-F (Form 20-F/A) filed with the SEC on April 19, 2018;
- Our report on Form 6-K previously furnished to the SEC on April 20, 2018, and
- All our future annual reports on Form 20-F to be filed with the SEC, and certain reports on Form 6-K to be furnished to the SEC that we specifically identify in such form as being incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement, on or after the date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the completion of the offering of securities under this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus are delivered, upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus other than exhibits which are not specifically incorporated by reference in those documents. You can request those documents from:

CNOOC Limited 65th Floor, Bank of China Tower One Garden Road, Central Hong Kong Tel +852 2213-2500

You should rely only on the information that we incorporate by reference or provide in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it.

PROSPECTUS

CNOOC Limited

Guarantees of Debt Securities

CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC

Debt Securities	

We may from time to time offer in one or more series debt securities of CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC, which would be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by CNOOC Limited.

Each time we sell securities pursuant to this prospectus, we will provide a supplement to this prospectus that contains specific information about the offering and the specific terms of the securities offered. The applicable prospectus supplement may also add to, update or change information contained in this prospectus. In addition, we may supplement, update or change any of the information contained in this prospectus by incorporating information by reference in this prospectus.

You should read this prospectus, the applicable prospectus supplement and any documents incorporated by reference carefully before you invest in any of our securities. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state or other jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Investing in our securities involves risk. You should carefully consider the risks described under the heading "Risk Factors" beginning on page 3, in the applicable prospectus supplement and in the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or passed upon the adequacy or accuracy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
About this Prospectus	1
CNOOC Limited	2
The Issuer	2
Risk Factors	3
Forward-Looking Statements	4
Where You Can Find More Information About Us	
Incorporation of Documents By Reference	5
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	
Use of Proceeds	6
Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees	
Plan of Distribution	
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities	24
Legal Matters	25
Experts	25

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

This prospectus is part of a registration statement we filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), using a "shelf" registration process. We may sell the securities described in this prospectus from time to time in one or more offerings. You should carefully read this prospectus and any prospectus supplement together with the additional information described under the heading "Where You Can Find More Information About Us." We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different or additional information.

Each time we sell securities pursuant to this prospectus, we will provide a prospectus supplement that contains specific information about the terms of that offering, including the specific amounts, prices and terms of the securities offered. If this prospectus is inconsistent with the prospectus supplement, you should rely upon the prospectus supplement. In addition, the prospectus supplement may also add, update or change the information contained in this prospectus.

If you are in a jurisdiction where offers to sell, or solicitations of offers to purchase, the securities offered by this document are unlawful, or if you are a person to whom it is unlawful to direct these types of activities, then the offer presented in this document does not extend to you.

You should assume that the information in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement, as well as the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any prospectus supplement, is accurate only as of the date of the documents containing the information, unless the information specifically indicates that another date applies. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

Wherever references are made in this prospectus to information that will be included in a prospectus supplement, to the extent permitted by applicable law, rules or regulations, we may instead include such information or add, update or change the information contained in this prospectus by means of a post-effective amendment to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part, through filings we make with the SEC that are incorporated by reference in this prospectus or by any other method as may then be permitted under applicable law, rules or regulations.

In this prospectus, unless otherwise indicated, references to "we," "us," "our" and the "Company" refer to CNOOC Limited, or CNOOC Limited and its subsidiaries, including CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC (the "Issuer"), as the context requires. References to "CNOOC" are to China National Offshore Oil Corporation and its subsidiaries (other than CNOOC Limited and its subsidiaries). References to "China" and the "PRC" refer to the People's Republic of China and, solely for the purpose of this prospectus, exclude the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan.

CNOOC LIMITED

We are an upstream company specializing in the exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas. We are the dominant oil and natural gas producer in offshore China and, in terms of reserves and production, we are also one of the largest independent oil and natural gas exploration and production companies in the world.

We were incorporated with limited liability on August 20, 1999 in Hong Kong under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The PRC government established CNOOC, our controlling shareholder, as a state-owned offshore petroleum company in 1982 under the Regulation of the PRC on the Exploitation of Offshore Petroleum Resources in Cooperation with Foreign Enterprises. CNOOC assumed certain responsibility for the administration and development of PRC offshore petroleum operations with foreign oil and gas companies. Prior to CNOOC's reorganization in 1999, CNOOC and its various affiliates performed both commercial and administrative functions relating to oil and natural gas exploration and development in offshore China. In 1999, CNOOC transferred all of its then current operational and commercial interests in its offshore petroleum business, including the related assets and liabilities, to us. As a result, we and our subsidiaries are the only vehicles through which CNOOC engages in oil and gas exploration, development, production and sales activities both in and outside the PRC.

Our registered office is located at 65th Floor, Bank of China Tower, One Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong, and our telephone number is +852 2213-2500. We maintain a website at www.cnoocltd.com where general information about us is available. The contents of the website are not part of this prospectus.

THE ISSUER

CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC is our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary and was formed as a limited liability company on March 23, 2015 in the State of Delaware. It has no material assets and will conduct no business except in connection with the issuance of debt securities and the advance of proceeds from such issuance to us or a company controlled by us. So long as the applicable series of debt securities are outstanding, CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC will limit its permitted activities as described under "Description of Debt Securities and Guarantees—Certain Covenants—Limitation on Issuer's Activities." Its registered office is located at the offices of its registered agent, Corporation Service Company, at 251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington, Delaware, U.S.A. 19808. Its telephone number is 302-636-5400.

CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

RISK FACTORS

You should consider the specific risks described in our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017 under "Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors," the risks described under "Risk Factors" in the applicable prospectus supplement, and any risk factors set forth in our other filings with the SEC, pursuant to Sections 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, including our reports on Form 6-K, before making an investment decision. Each of the risks described in these documents could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects, and could result in a partial or complete loss of your investment. See "Where You Can Find More Information About Us."

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference include "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements regarding expected future events, business prospects or financial results. The words "expect," "anticipate," "continue," "estimate," "objective," "ongoing," "may," "will," "project," "should," "believe," "plans," "intends" and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements address, among others, such issues as:

- the amount and nature of future exploration, development and other capital expenditures;
- wells to be drilled or reworked;
- development projects;
- exploration prospects;
- estimates of proved oil and gas reserves;
- development and drilling potential;
- expansion and other development trends of the oil and gas industry;
- business strategy;
- production of oil and gas;
- development of undeveloped reserves;
- expansion and growth of our business and operations;
- oil and gas prices and demand;
- future earnings and cash flow; and our estimated financial information.

These statements are based on assumptions and analysis made by us in light of our experience and our perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. However, whether actual results and developments will meet our expectations and predictions depend on a number of risks and uncertainties which could cause our actual results, performance and financial condition to differ materially from our expectations, including those associated with fluctuations in crude oil and natural gas prices, our exploration or development activities, our capital expenditure requirements, our business strategy, whether the transactions entered into by us can complete on schedule pursuant to their terms and timetable or at all, the highly competitive nature of the oil and natural gas industry, our foreign operations, environmental liabilities and compliance requirements, and economic and political conditions in the PRC and overseas. For a description of these and other risks and uncertainties, see "Risk Factors" and other cautionary statements appearing in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference.

Consequently, all of the forward-looking statements made in this prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference are qualified by these cautionary statements. We cannot assure that the results or developments anticipated by us will be realized or, even if substantially realized, that they will have the expected effect on us, our business or our operations.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION ABOUT US

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC. The registration statement, including the attached exhibits, contains additional relevant information about us. The rules and regulations of the SEC allow us to omit some of the information included in the registration statement from this prospectus. In addition, we are subject to periodic reporting and other informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, in accordance with this act, we file reports, including annual reports on Form 20-F, and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any of this information in the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can obtain information on the operation of the SEC's Public Reference Room in Washington, D.C. by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

The SEC also maintains an Internet web site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers, like us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that site is http://www.sec.gov.

INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" the information we file with or furnish to them. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those documents. Each document incorporated by reference is current only as of the date of such document, and the incorporation by reference of such documents shall not create any implication that there has been no change in our affairs since the date thereof or that the information contained therein is current as of any time subsequent to its date. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus and should be read with the same care.

When we update the information contained in documents that have been incorporated by reference by making future filings with the SEC, the information incorporated by reference in this prospectus is considered to be automatically updated and superseded. In other words, in the case of a conflict or inconsistency between information contained in this prospectus and information incorporated by reference into this prospectus, you should rely on the information contained in the document that was filed later.

We incorporate by reference the documents listed below:

- Our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on April 19, 2018 and Amendment No.1 to Form 20-F (Form 20-F/A) filed with the SEC on April 19, 2018;
- Our report on Form 6-K previously furnished to the SEC on April 20, 2018; and
- All our future annual reports on Form 20-F to be filed with the SEC, and certain reports on Form 6-K to be furnished to the SEC that we specifically identify in such form as being incorporated by reference in this prospectus, on or after the date of this prospectus and prior to the completion of the offering of securities under the applicable prospectus supplement.

We will provide without charge to each person, including any beneficial owner, to whom this prospectus is delivered, upon his or her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been or may be incorporated by reference into this prospectus other than exhibits which are not specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. You can request those documents from:

CNOOC Limited 65th Floor, Bank of China Tower One Garden Road, Central Hong Kong Tel +852 2213-2500

You should rely only on the information that we incorporate by reference or provide in this prospectus or the applicable prospectus supplement. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The following table sets forth our unaudited consolidated ratio of earnings to fixed charges for each of the periods indicated using financial information extracted, where applicable, from our audited consolidated financial statements. Our audited consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IFRS IASB").

	Year Ended December 31,				
	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges	22.87	20.14	4.01	0.05	7.41

Earnings included in the calculation of the ratio of earnings to fixed charges represent income before income taxes plus fixed charges, other than capitalized interest. Fixed charges include interest expense, including capitalized interest, amortization of debt issuance costs and a portion of rent expense representative of interest.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Unless otherwise indicated in an accompanying prospectus supplement, the net proceeds from the sale of securities will be used for general corporate purposes.

DESCRIPTION OF DEBT SECURITIES AND GUARANTEES

We may from time to time offer in one or more series debt securities of the Issuer which would be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. The following is a description of certain general terms and provisions of the debt securities, the guarantees and an indenture (the "indenture") entered into or to be entered into among the Issuer, the Company and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee (the "trustee"), initial paying and transfer agent and initial registrar, the form of which has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part.

This description is not complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to all of the provisions of the indenture, including the definitions of specified terms used in the indenture, and to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended (the "Trust Indenture Act"). The particular terms of the debt securities to be offered by any prospectus supplement and the extent these general provisions may apply to such debt securities will be described in the applicable prospectus supplement. The terms of such debt securities will include those set forth in the indenture and any related documents and those made a part of the indenture by the Trust Indenture Act. You should read the description below, the applicable prospectus supplement and the provisions of the indenture and any related documents before investing in the debt securities.

General

The prospectus supplement relating to any series of debt securities that we may offer will contain the specific terms of the debt securities. These terms may include the following:

- the title and any limit on the aggregate principal amount of the debt securities;
- whether the debt securities will be secured or unsecured;
- whether the debt securities are senior or subordinated debt securities and, if subordinated, the terms of such subordination;
- the percentage or percentages of principal amount at which such debt securities will be issued;
- the interest rate(s) or the method for determining the interest rate(s);
- the dates on which interest will accrue or the method for determining dates on which interest will
 accrue and dates on which interest will be payable;
- the record dates for the determination of holders to whom interest is payable or the method for determining such dates;
- the dates on which the debt securities may be issued, the maturity date and other dates of payment of principal;
- redemption or early repayment provisions;
- authorized denominations if other than denominations of US\$2,000 and multiples of US\$1,000 in excess thereof;
- the form of the debt securities;
- amount of discount or premium, if any, with which such debt securities will be issued;
- whether such debt securities will be issued in whole or in part in the form of one or more global securities;
- the identity of the depositary for global securities;
- whether a temporary security is to be issued with respect to such series and whether any interest payable prior to the issuance of definitive securities of the series will be credited to the account of the persons entitled thereto;

- the terms upon which beneficial interests in a temporary global security may be exchanged in whole or in part for beneficial interests in a definitive global security or for individual definitive securities;
- any covenants applicable to the particular debt securities being issued;
- any defaults and events of default applicable to the particular debt securities being issued;
- any provisions for the defeasance of the particular debt securities being issued in whole or in part;
- any addition or change in the provisions related to satisfaction and discharge;
- any restriction or condition on the transferability of the debt securities;
- the currency, currencies or currency units in which the purchase price for, the principal of and any premium and any interest on, such debt securities will be payable;
- the time period within which, the manner in which, and the terms and conditions upon which the purchaser of the debt securities can select the payment currency;
- the securities exchange(s) or automated quotation system(s) on which the securities will be listed or admitted to trading, as applicable, if any;
- the Issuer's obligation or right to redeem, purchase or repay debt securities under a sinking fund, amortization or analogous provision;
- provisions relating to the modification of the indenture both with and without the consent of holders of debt securities issued under the indenture;
- place or places where the Issuer may pay principal, premium, if any, and interest and where holders may present the debt securities for registration of transfer, exchange or conversion;
- place or places where notices and demands relating to the debt securities and the indenture may be made;
- if other than the principal amount of the debt securities, the portion of the principal amount of the debt securities that is payable upon declaration of acceleration of maturity;
- any index or formula used to determine the amount of payments of principal of, premium (if any) or interest on the debt securities and the method of determining these amounts;
- any provisions relating to compensation and reimbursement of the trustee;
- provisions, if any, granting special rights to holders of the debt securities upon the occurrence of specified events; and additional terms not inconsistent with the provisions of the indenture, except as permitted by the terms of the indenture.

We may sell the debt securities, including original issue discount securities, at par or at greater than de minimis discount below their stated principal amount. Unless otherwise stated in a prospectus supplement, additional debt securities of a particular series may be issued without the consent of the holders of the debt securities of such series outstanding at the time of issuance. Any such additional debt securities, together with all other outstanding debt securities of that series, will constitute a single series of debt securities under the indenture. Such additional debt securities will have the same terms and conditions as the applicable series of debt securities in all respects (or in all respects except for the issue date, the issue price or the first payment of interest), and will vote together as one class on all matters with respect to such series of debt securities. No additional debt securities will be issued with the same CUSIP, ISIN or other identifying number as the debt securities of a series issued hereunder unless the additional debt securities are fungible with such outstanding debt securities for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Form, Exchange and Transfer

The debt securities will be issued, unless otherwise indicated in the applicable prospectus supplement, in fully registered form without interest coupons and in minimum denominations of US\$2,000 and integral multiples of US\$1,000 in excess thereof.

The entity performing the role of maintaining the list of registered holders is called the "registrar." It will also register transfers of the registered debt securities. You may exchange or transfer your registered debt securities at the office of the registrar. The registrar acts as the agent of the Issuer for registering debt securities in the names of holders and transferring registered debt securities. The Issuer may also arrange for additional registrars, and may change registrars. The Issuer may also choose to act as its own registrar.

You will not be required to pay a service charge for any registration of transfer or exchange of debt securities, but you may be required to pay any tax or other governmental charge associated with the registration of transfer or exchange. The registration of transfer or exchange of a registered debt security will only be made if you have duly endorsed the debt security or provided the registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory in form to the registrar.

Guarantees

Under the indenture, the Company will irrevocably and unconditionally guarantee the due and punctual payment of the principal of and interest on, and all other amounts payable under (including any Additional Amounts payable in respect of), the debt securities when and as the same shall become due and payable, whether on the stated maturity, upon acceleration, by call for redemption or otherwise. The Company has (i) agreed that its obligations under the guarantees will be as if it were principal obligor and not merely surety, and will be enforceable irrespective of any invalidity, irregularity or unenforceability of the debt securities or the indenture (other than in respect of the guarantees) and (ii) waived its right to require the trustee to pursue or exhaust its legal or equitable remedies against the Issuer prior to exercising the trustee's rights under the guarantees. The guarantees will not be discharged with respect to any debt security except by payment in full of the principal thereof, interest thereon and all other amounts payable thereunder (including any Additional Amounts payable in respect thereof). Moreover, if at any time any amount paid under a debt security is rescinded or must otherwise be restored, the rights of the holder of the debt security under the guarantee will be reinstated with respect to such payment as though such payment had not been made. All payments under the guarantees will be made in U.S. dollars.

Additional Amounts

All payments of principal and interest in respect of the debt securities of each series and/or the guarantees will be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, or on account of, any present or future taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature ("Taxes") imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or on behalf of the United States, Hong Kong, the PRC or any other jurisdiction in which the Issuer or the Company (or any successor to the Issuer or the Company) is resident for tax purposes, in each case including any political subdivision, territory or possession thereof, any authority therein having power to tax or any area subject to its jurisdiction, or any jurisdiction from or through which any payment is made by or on behalf of the Issuer or the Company (each, a "Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction") unless such Taxes are required by law to be withheld or deducted. If any deduction or withholding for any present or future Taxes of the applicable Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction shall at any time be so required, the Issuer or the Company, as the case may be, shall pay such additional amounts ("Additional Amounts") as will result (after deduction of such Taxes and any additional Taxes payable in respect of such Additional Amounts) in receipt by the holder of any debt security of such amounts as would have been received by such holder with respect to such security or the guarantee, as applicable, had no such withholding or deduction been required; provided, however, that no Additional Amounts shall be payable in respect of any debt security:

- (i) Where such Taxes would not have been imposed but for (a) the existence of any present or former connection (other than the mere holding of the debt security) between the holder (or between a fiduciary, settlor or beneficiary of the holder if such holder is an estate or a trust, or a person holding power over an estate or trust administered by a fiduciary holder or between a member or shareholder of such holder, if such holder is a partnership or corporation) or a beneficial owner of a debt security and the jurisdiction imposing such tax, assessment or other governmental charge, including, without limitation, such holder or a beneficial owner of a debt security (or such fiduciary, settlor, beneficiary, person holding a power over such holder or the member or shareholder of such holder) being or having or having been a citizen or resident thereof or being or having been engaged in a trade or business or present therein or having had a permanent establishment therein, or (b) such holder's or beneficial owner's past or present status as a personal holding company or private foundation or other tax-exempt organization with respect to the United States or as a corporation which accumulates earnings to avoid U.S. Federal income tax: or
- (ii) which is surrendered (where required to be surrendered) more than 30 days after the Relevant Date, except to the extent that the holder of it would have been entitled to such Additional Amounts on surrender of such Security for payment on the last day of such period of 30 days, where "Relevant Date" means whichever is the later of (A) the date on which such payment first becomes due and (B) if the full amount payable has not been received by the paying agent on or prior to such due date, the date on which, the full amount having been so received, notice to that effect shall have been given to the holders of the debt securities; or
- (iii) to a holder (or to a third party on behalf of a holder) who would have been able to avoid such withholding or deduction by duly presenting the debt security (where presentation is required) to another paying agent; or
- (iv) with respect to any Taxes imposed that would not have been imposed but for the holder or beneficial owner (a) being or having been a "10-percent shareholder" of the Issuer as defined in Sections 871(h)(3)(B) or 881(c)(3)(B) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or any successor provisions; or (b) being a controlled foreign corporation related to the Issuer through stock ownership; or (c) being a bank receiving interest described in Section 881(c)(3)(A) of the Code; or
- (v) with respect to any Taxes that would not have been imposed but for the failure of the holder or beneficial owner to comply with any applicable certification, documentation, information, or reporting requirement concerning such holder's or beneficial owner's nationality, residence, identity or connection with a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction (including, if the United States is the

Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction, the failure to comply with a request to fulfill the statement requirements of Sections 871(h)(2)(B)(ii) or 881(c)(2)(B)(ii) of the Code), if and to the extent that timely compliance with such requirement would have reduced or eliminated any withholding or deduction of such Taxes; or

- (vi) with respect to any withholding or deduction that is imposed or levied on a payment pursuant to European Council Directive 2003/48/EC (the "Savings Directive") or any other directive implementing, replacing, amending or supplementing the Savings Directive or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or
- (vii) with respect to any estate, inheritance, gift, sale, transfer, personal property or similar tax, assessment or other similar governmental charge; or
- (viii) with respect to any such Taxes payable otherwise than by deduction or withholding from payments under or with respect to any debt security or the guarantee; or
- (ix) with respect to any tax, assessment, withholding or deduction required by Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code ("FATCA"), any current or future U.S. Treasury Regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder, any intergovernmental agreement between the United States and any other jurisdiction to implement FATCA (an "IGA"), any law, regulation or other official guidance enacted in any jurisdiction implementing FATCA or an IGA, or any agreement with the U.S. Internal Revenue Service under or with respect to FATCA; or
- (x) any combination of taxes, duties, assessments or other governmental charges referred to in the preceding items (i) through (ix) above.

Additional Amounts will also not be paid with respect to any payment of the principal of or any interest on any debt security or under the guarantee to any holder of a debt security who is a fiduciary or partnership or other than the sole beneficial owner of such payment to the extent that payment would be required by the laws of the Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction to be included in the income of a beneficiary or settlor with respect to the fiduciary, a member of that partnership or a beneficial owner who would not have been entitled to the Additional Amounts had that beneficiary, settlor, member or beneficial owner been the holder of the debt securities.

Whenever there is mentioned, in any context, the payment of principal or interest in respect of any debt security or guarantee, such mention shall be deemed to include the payment of Additional Amounts provided for in the indenture to the extent that, in such context, Additional Amounts are, were or would be payable in respect thereof pursuant to the indenture.

Optional Tax Redemption

Each series of debt securities may be redeemed, at the option of the Issuer, in whole but not in part, upon notice as described below, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to, but not including, the date fixed for redemption and Additional Amounts, if any, if, as a result of any change in or amendment to the laws of a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction with respect to the Company or such Issuer or any regulations or rulings promulgated thereunder, or any change in the official interpretation or official application of such laws, regulations or rulings, which change or amendment (i) in the case of the Company or the Issuer becomes effective on or after the date of the applicable prospectus supplement and (ii) in the case of any successor to the Company or the Issuer that is organized or tax resident in a jurisdiction that is not a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction with respect to the Company or such Issuer as of the original issue date of the applicable series of debt securities becomes effective on or after the date such successor assumes the Company's or the Issuer's obligations, as applicable, under the debt securities and the indenture,

the Issuer is or would be required on the next succeeding due date for a payment with respect to
the debt securities to pay Additional Amounts with respect to the debt securities as described
above under "—Additional Amounts"; or

- (2) the Company is or would be unable, for reasons outside its control, on the next succeeding due date for a payment with respect to the debt securities to procure payment by the Issuer, and with respect to a payment due or to become due under the relevant guarantee or the indenture, as the case may be, the Company is or would be required on the next succeeding due date for a payment with respect to the debt securities to pay Additional Amounts as described above under "—Additional Amounts"; or
- (3) any payment to the Issuer by the Company or any of its wholly-owned subsidiaries to enable the Issuer to make payment of interest or Additional Amounts, if any, on the debt securities is or would be on the next succeeding due date for a payment with respect to the debt securities subject to withholding or deduction for taxes imposed by a Relevant Taxing Jurisdiction or any authority therein or thereof having power to tax,

and such obligation cannot be avoided by the use of reasonable measures available to the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Company, the Issuer or any successor person may not redeem the debt securities in the case that Additional Amounts are payable in respect of PRC withholding tax at a rate of 10% or less solely as a result of the Company, the Issuer or a successor person being considered a PRC tax resident under the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law.

Notice of redemption of the debt securities as provided above shall be given not less than 30 nor more than 60 calendar days prior to the date fixed for redemption. Notice having been given, the debt securities of such series shall become due and payable on the date fixed for redemption and will be paid at the redemption price, together with accrued interest to, but not including, the date fixed for redemption and any Additional Amounts, at the place or places of payment and in the manner specified in the notice. From and after the date fixed for redemption, if moneys for the redemption of such debt securities shall have been made available as provided in the indenture for redemption on the date fixed for redemption, the debt securities shall cease to bear interest, and the only right of the holders of the debt securities shall be to receive payment of the redemption price and interest accrued to, but not including, the date fixed for redemption.

Modification and Waiver

The indenture contains provisions permitting the Company, the Issuer and the trustee, without the consent of the holders of the applicable series of debt securities, to execute supplemental indentures for certain enumerated purposes, including any amendment solely to conform the indenture to the applicable prospectus supplement (as amended and supplemented) and, with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the applicable series of debt securities then outstanding under the indenture, to change or modify in any manner the rights of the holders of the debt securities of the applicable series, provided that no such modification or amendment may, without the consent of the holder of each such debt security affected thereby, among other things:

- (i) change the stated maturity of the debt securities;
- (ii) reduce the principal amount of or payments of interest on any such debt security;
- (iii) change any obligation of the Company or the Issuer to pay Additional Amounts;
- (iv) change the currency or place of payment of the principal of or interest on such debt security;
- (v) impair the right to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment due on or with respect to any such debt security;
- (vi) reduce the above stated percentage of outstanding debt securities necessary to modify or amend the indenture;

- (vii) reduce the percentage of the aggregate principal amount of outstanding debt securities necessary for waiver of compliance with certain provisions of the indenture or for waiver of certain defaults;
- (viii) change, in any manner adverse to the interest of holders of the debt securities, the terms and provisions of the guarantees in respect of the due and punctual payment of principal of and interest on the debt securities;
- (ix) reduce the premium payable upon the redemption or repurchase of any debt security of such series or change the time at which any debt security of such series may be redeemed or required to be repurchased as described in the applicable prospectus supplement; or
- (x) modify such provisions with respect to modification and waiver.

The holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities then outstanding of a series may, on behalf of holders of all the debt securities of that series, waive compliance by the Company or the Issuer with certain restrictive provisions of the indenture. The holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of a series may on behalf of all holders of debt securities waive any existing or past default under the indenture for the debt securities, except a continuing default in the payment of principal of, or interest on, any debt security then outstanding or in respect of a covenant or provision which under such indenture cannot be modified or amended without the consent of the holder of each debt security then outstanding affected thereby. Any such waivers will be conclusive and binding on all holders of the debt securities of a series, whether or not they have given consent to such waivers, and on all future holders of such debt securities, whether or not notation of such waivers is made upon such debt securities. Any instrument given by or on behalf of any holder of a debt security in connection with any consent to any such waiver will be irrevocable once given and will be conclusive and binding on all subsequent holders of such debt security.

Certain Covenants

Limitation on Liens

The indenture provides that the Company will not, and will not permit the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary to, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Lien upon any of its property or assets, now owned or hereafter acquired, to secure any Indebtedness of the Company, the Issuer or such Principal Subsidiary (or any guarantees or indemnity in respect thereof) without, in any such case, making effective provision whereby the debt securities and the guarantees will be secured either at least equally and ratably with such Indebtedness or by such other Lien as shall have been approved by the holders of the debt securities as provided in the indenture, for so long as such Indebtedness will be so secured, unless, after giving effect thereto, the aggregate outstanding principal amount of all such secured Indebtedness (including the Attributable Value of the Sale and Leaseback Transactions set forth below) entered into after the original issue date of the relevant series of debt securities does not exceed 50% of the Company's Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth.

The foregoing restriction will not apply to:

- any Lien which is in existence prior to the original issue date of the debt securities and any replacement thereof created in connection with the refinancing (together with interest, fees and other charges attributable thereto) of the Indebtedness originally secured (but the principal amount secured by any such Lien may not be increased);
- (ii) any Lien arising or already arisen automatically by operation of law which is promptly discharged or disputed in good faith by appropriate proceedings; provided that any reserve or other appropriate provision required by IFRS IASB shall have been made therefor;
- (iii) any Lien over goods (or any documents relating thereto) arising either in favor of a bank issuing a form of documentary credit in connection with the purchase of such goods or by

- way of retention of title by the supplier of such goods where such goods are supplied on credit, subject to such retention of title, and in both cases where such goods are acquired in the ordinary course of business;
- (iv) any right of set-off or combination of accounts arising in favor of any bank or financial institution as a result of the day-to-day operation of banking arrangements;
- (v) any Lien either over any asset acquired after the original issue date of the debt securities which is in existence at the time of such acquisition or in respect of the obligations of any Person which becomes a Subsidiary of the Company after the original issue date of the debt securities which is in existence at the date on which it becomes a Subsidiary of the Company and in both cases any replacement thereof created in connection with the refinancing (together with interest, fees and other charges attributable thereto) of the Indebtedness originally secured (but the principal amount secured by any such Lien may not be increased); provided that any such Lien was not incurred in anticipation of such acquisition or of such company becoming a Subsidiary of the Company;
- (vi) any Lien created on any property or asset acquired, leased or developed (including improved, constructed, altered or repaired) after the original issue date of the debt securities; provided, however, that (a) any such Lien shall be confined to the property or asset acquired, leased or developed (including improved, constructed, altered or repaired); (b) the principal amount of the debt encumbered by such Lien shall not exceed the cost of the acquisition or development of such property or asset or any improvement thereto (including any construction, repair or alteration) or thereon and (c) any such Lien shall be created concurrently with or within one year following the acquisition, lease or development (including construction, improvement, repair or alteration) of such property or asset;
- (vii) any Lien pursuant to any order of attachment, execution, enforcement, distraint or similar legal process arising in connection with court proceedings; provided that such process is effectively stayed, discharged or otherwise set aside within 30 days;
- (viii) any Lien created or outstanding in favor of the Company or any of the Company's Subsidiaries;
- (ix) any easement, right-of-way, zoning and similar restriction and other similar charge or encumbrance not interfering with the ordinary course of business of the Company and the Principal Subsidiaries of the Company;
- (x) any lease, sublease, license and sublicense granted to any third party and any Lien pursuant to farm-in and farm-out agreements, operating agreements, development agreements and any other agreements, which are customary in the oil and gas industry and in the ordinary course of the Company's business and any Principal Subsidiary;
- (xi) any Lien on any property or asset to secure all or part of the cost of exploration, drilling, development, production, gathering, processing, marketing of such property or asset or to secure Indebtedness incurred to provide funds for any such purpose;
- any Lien over any property or asset to secure Indebtedness incurred in connection with the construction, installation or financing of pollution control, abatement or remediation facilities;
- (xiii) any Lien arising in connection with industrial revenue, development or similar bonds or other indebtedness or means of project financing (not to exceed the value of the project financed and limited to the project financed);
- (xiv) any Lien in favor of any government or any subdivision thereof, securing the obligations of the Company or any of its Principal Subsidiaries under any contract or payment owed to such governmental entity pursuant to applicable laws, rules, regulations or statutes;

- (xv) any Lien over any property or asset securing Indebtedness of the Company or any of its Principal Subsidiaries guaranteed by any international finance agency, including the World Bank and the International Finance Corporation, or any subdivision, department or division thereof;
- (xvi) any right arising in connection with the sale or other transfer of crude oil, natural gas or other petroleum hydrocarbons in place for a period of time until, or in an amount such that, the transferee will realize therefrom a specified amount (however determined) of such crude oil, natural gas or other petroleum hydrocarbons or a specified amount of money, or the sale or other transfer of any other interest in property of the character commonly referred to as a production payment or overriding royalty;
- (xvii) any Lien created in connection with any sale/leaseback transaction, subject to the limitation set forth below under "—Certain Covenants—Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions";
- (xviii) any renewal or extension of any of the Liens described in the foregoing clauses which is limited to the original property or asset covered thereby; or
- (xix) any Lien in respect of Indebtedness of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries with respect to which the Company or such Subsidiary has paid money or deposited money or securities with a fiscal agent, trustee or depository to pay or discharge in full the obligations of the Company or such Subsidiary in respect thereof (other than the obligation that such money or securities so paid or deposited, and the proceeds therefrom, be sufficient to pay or discharge such obligations in full).

Limitation on Sale and Leaseback Transactions

The indenture provides that the Company shall not, and shall not cause or permit any Principal Subsidiary to, enter into any Sale and Leaseback Transaction with any Person (not including any Principal Subsidiary) for a period, including renewals, in excess of three years of any Principal Property which has been owned by the Company or a Principal Subsidiary for more than six months unless either:

- (i) the Company or such Principal Subsidiary would be permitted under the "—Certain Covenants—Limitation on Liens" covenant to create, incur or permit to exist a Lien on the Principal Property to secure Indebtedness (without equally and ratably securing the debt securities with such Indebtedness) at least equal in amount to the Attributable Value of the Sale and Leaseback Transactions; or
- (ii) the Company or such Principal Subsidiary, within 120 days after such sale or transfer, (x) applies, in the case of a sale or transfer for cash, an amount equal to the net proceeds thereof or, in the case of a sale or transfer otherwise than for cash, an amount equal to the fair market value of the Principal Property so leased (as determined in good faith by any two members of the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of such Principal Subsidiary) to (A) the retirement of Indebtedness of the Company or such Principal Subsidiary ranking prior to or on parity with the debt securities, incurred or assumed by the Company or such Principal Subsidiary, which by its terms matures at, or is extendable or renewable at the option of the obligor to, a date more than 12 months after the date of incurring or assuming such Indebtedness; provided, however, that in connection with such application, the Company or such Principal Subsidiary will retire such Indebtedness and will cause the related commitment (if any) to be permanently reduced in an amount equal to the principal amount of such Indebtedness so voluntarily retired by the Company or such Principal Subsidiary; or (B) the purchase of other property which will constitute a Principal Property having a fair market value (as determined in good faith by any two members of the Board of Directors of the Company or the Board of Directors of such Principal Subsidiary) at

least equal to the fair market value of the Principal Property leased in such Sale and Leaseback Transaction; or (y) deposits, in the case of a sale or transfer for cash, an amount equal to the net proceeds thereof into an escrow account which is used solely for the purpose of providing for the obligations of the Company or such Principal Subsidiary under the Sale and Leaseback Transaction.

"Attributable Value" means, at the time of determination, the lesser of (i) the fair market value of the Principal Property subject to the Sale and Leaseback Transaction (as determined in good faith by any two members of the Board of Directors of the Company) and (ii) the present value (discounted at a rate equal to the rate of interest on the debt securities, compounded semi-annually) of the total amount of rent required to be paid under such lease during the remaining term thereof, including any period for which such lease has been extended. Such rental payments shall not include amounts payable by or on behalf of the lessee on account of maintenance and repairs, insurance, taxes, assessments, water rates and similar charges.

"Principal Property" means any real property owned at the original issue date of the debt securities or thereafter acquired by the Company or a Principal Subsidiary, the gross book value (including related land and improvements thereon and all machinery and equipment included therein) of which, on the date as of which the determination is being made, exceeds 15% of the Consolidated Total Assets of the Company.

"Sale and Leaseback Transaction" means any transaction or series of related transactions pursuant to which the Company or any Principal Subsidiary sells or transfers any Principal Property to any Person with the intention of taking back a lease of such Principal Property pursuant to which the rental payments are calculated to amortize the purchase price of such Principal Property substantially over the useful life thereof and such Principal Property is in fact so leased. For purposes of this definition, a Sale and Leaseback Transaction shall not include any transaction relating to farm-in and farm-out agreements, operating agreements, development agreements, and any other similar arrangements which are customary in the oil and gas industry or in the ordinary course of business of the Company and any Principal Subsidiary.

Consolidation, Merger and Sale of Assets

The indenture provides that neither the Company nor the Issuer may consolidate with or merge into any other Person in a transaction in which the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, is not the surviving entity, or convey, transfer or lease its properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any Person unless:

- (i) any Person formed by such consolidation or into which the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, is merged or to whom the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, has conveyed, transferred or leased its properties and assets substantially as an entirety is a corporation, partnership, trust or other entity validly existing under the laws of the jurisdiction of its organization and such Person expressly assumes by an indenture supplemental to the indenture all the obligations of the Company or the Issuer under the indenture, the debt securities or the guarantees, as the case may be;
- (ii) immediately after giving effect to the transaction, no Event of Default, and no event which, after notice or lapse of time or both, would become an Event of Default, shall have occurred and be continuing;
- (iii) any such Person not organized and validly existing under the laws of (or any such Person resident for tax purposes in a jurisdiction other than) Hong Kong, the PRC or any successor jurisdiction (in the case of the Company) or the United States or any successor jurisdiction (in the case of the Issuer) shall expressly agree in a supplemental indenture that its jurisdiction of organization or tax residence (or any political subdivision, territory or possession thereof, any taxing authority therein or any area subject to its jurisdiction) will be added to the list of Relevant Taxing Jurisdictions; and

(iv) if, as a result of the transaction, any property or asset of the Company or any of the Subsidiaries of the Company would become subject to a Lien that would not be permitted under "—Certain Covenants—Limitation on Liens" above, the Company, the Issuer or such successor Person takes such steps as shall be necessary to secure the debt securities at least equally and ratably with the Indebtedness secured by such Lien or by such other Lien as shall have been approved by holders of the debt securities pursuant to the indenture for so long as such Indebtedness will be secured.

Limitation on the Issuer's Activities

For so long as the applicable series of debt securities are outstanding, the Issuer will conduct no business or any other activities other than the offering, sale or issuance of Indebtedness and the lending of the proceeds thereof to the Company or a company controlled by the Company and any other activities in connection therewith. Upon any merger of the Issuer into the Company or of the Company into the Issuer, this covenant will no longer apply.

In addition, the Company will maintain 100% of direct or indirect equity ownership of the Issuer during the period that any debt securities remain outstanding.

For so long as any debt securities are outstanding, neither the Issuer nor the Company will take any action to change the Issuer's status from, or election to be, a disregarded entity for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Events of Default

Each of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" under the indenture for a series of debt securities:

- (i) failure to pay principal of any debt securities of that series within two Business Days after the date such amount is due and payable, upon optional redemption, acceleration or otherwise;
- (ii) failure to pay interest on any debt securities of that series within 30 days after the due date for such payment;
- (iii) failure to perform any other covenant or agreement of the Company or the Issuer in the indenture, and such failure continues for 60 days after there has been given, by registered or certified mail, to the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, by the trustee or by the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series then outstanding (with a copy to the trustee) a written notice specifying such failure and requiring it to be remedied and stating that such notice is a "Notice of Default" under the indenture;
- (iv) the guarantees shall cease to be in full force or effect or the Company shall deny or disaffirm its obligations under the guarantees;
- (v) (a) failure to pay upon final maturity (after giving effect to the expiration of any applicable grace period therefor) the principal of any Indebtedness of the Company, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary, (b) acceleration of the maturity of any Indebtedness of the Company, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary following a default by the Company, the Issuer or such Principal Subsidiary, if such Indebtedness is not discharged, or such acceleration is not annulled, within ten days after receipt by the trustee of the written notice from the Company or the Issuer as provided in the indenture, or (c) failure to pay any amount payable by the Company, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary under any guarantee or indemnity in respect of any Indebtedness of any other Person if such obligation is not discharged or otherwise satisfied within ten days after receipt of written notice as provided in the indenture; provided, however, that no such event set forth in clause (a), (b) or (c) shall constitute an Event of

- Default unless the aggregate outstanding Indebtedness to which all such events relate exceeds the greater of (x) US\$100,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency) and (y) 2% of the Shareholders' Equity of the Guarantor as determined under IFRS IASB; and
- (vi) certain events in bankruptcy, insolvency or reorganization in respect of the Company, the Issuer or any Principal Subsidiary as provided in the indenture.

If an Event of Default (other than an Event of Default described in clause (vi) above) with respect to the debt securities of that series shall occur and be continuing, either the trustee or the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series then outstanding by written notice as provided in the indenture may declare the unpaid principal amount of such debt securities and any accrued and unpaid interest thereon (and any Additional Amounts payable in respect thereof) to be due and payable immediately. If an Event of Default in clause (vi) above with respect to the debt securities of that series shall occur, the unpaid principal amount of all the debt securities of that series and any accrued and unpaid interest thereon (and any Additional Amounts payable in respect thereof) will automatically, and without any action by the trustee or any holder of debt securities of that series, become immediately due and payable. After any such acceleration but before a judgment or decree based on acceleration has been obtained, the holders of at least a majority in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series then outstanding may, under certain circumstances, rescind and annul such acceleration if all Events of Default, other than the non-payment of accelerated principal, have been cured or waived as provided in the indenture. For information as to waiver of defaults, see "—Modification and Waiver." See also "—Notices" below.

Subject to the provisions of the indenture relating to the duties of the trustee, in case an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders of debt securities unless such holders shall have offered to the trustee pre-funding, security and/or indemnity satisfactory to the trustee. Subject to certain provisions, including those requiring pre-funding, security and/or indemnification of the trustee, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the debt securities of a series then outstanding will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the trustee or exercising any trust or power conferred on the trustee with respect to the debt securities. However, the trustee may refuse to follow any direction that conflicts with applicable law or the relevant indenture, that may involve the trustee in personal liability or cause it to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in following such direction and may take any other action it deems proper that is not inconsistent with any such direction received from holders. No holder of any debt securities of any series will have any right to institute any proceeding, judicial or otherwise, with respect to the indenture, the debt securities or the guarantees or for the appointment of a receiver or a trustee, or for any other remedy thereunder unless (i) such holder has previously given to the trustee written notice of a continuing Event of Default with respect to the debt securities of that series, (ii) the holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series then outstanding have made written request, and such holder or holders have offered to the trustee pre-funding, security and/or indemnity satisfactory to the trustee, to institute such proceeding in the trustee's own name and (iii) the trustee has failed to institute such proceeding, and has not received from the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the debt securities of that series then outstanding a direction inconsistent with such request, within 60 days after such notice, request and offer. However, such limitations do not apply to a suit instituted by a holder of a debt security for the enforcement of the right to receive payment of the principal of or interest on such debt security on or after the applicable due date specified in such debt security.

Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries will, directly or indirectly, pay or cause to be paid any consideration, whether by way of interest, fee or otherwise, to any holder of any debt securities of any series for or as an inducement to any consent, waiver or amendment of any of the terms or provisions of the indenture or the debt securities of that series unless such consideration is offered to be paid or agreed to be paid to all holders of the debt securities of that series that consent, waive or agree to amend in the time frame set forth in the solicitation documents relating to such consent, waiver or agreement.

The trustee need not do anything to ascertain whether any Event of Default has occurred or is continuing and will not be responsible to holders or any other person for any loss arising from any failure by it to do so, and the trustee may assume that no such event has occurred and that each of the Company and the Issuer is performing all of their respective obligations under the indenture and related debt securities and guarantee unless a responsible officer of the trustee has received written notice of the occurrence of such event or facts establishing that the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, is not performing all of its obligations under the indenture and related debt securities and guarantee, as the case may be.

Defeasance

The indenture provides that, upon the conditions set forth therein, the Company and the Issuer may each be discharged from all their respective obligations with respect to debt securities of a series (except for certain obligations to exchange or register the transfer of debt securities, to replace stolen, lost or mutilated debt securities, to maintain paying agencies and to hold moneys for payment in trust) upon the deposit in trust for the benefit of the holders of such debt securities of money in U.S. dollars or U.S. Government Obligations (as defined in the indenture), or both, which, through the payment of principal and interest thereon in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the debt securities (and any Additional Amounts in respect thereof) in accordance with the terms of the indenture and the debt securities ("defeasance"). Such defeasance may occur only if, among other things, the Company and the Issuer have delivered to the trustee an opinion of independent legal counsel of recognized standing licensed to practice law in the United States to the effect that holders of the debt securities will not recognize income, gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes as a result of such defeasance and will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such defeasance had not occurred, which opinion of counsel must be based on a ruling received by the Company or the Issuer from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, a published ruling of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service or other changes in applicable U.S. federal income tax law after the original issue date of the debt securities.

Prescription

Any moneys deposited with or paid to the trustee or any paying agent of the debt securities, or then held by the Issuer, in trust, for the payment of the principal of, premium (if any) or interest on (or any Additional Amount payable in respect of) any debt security and not applied but remaining unclaimed for two years after the date upon which such principal, premium (if any) or interest or any Additional Amount payable shall have become due and payable, shall, upon the written request of the Issuer or the Company be repaid to the Issuer or the Company, as the case may be, by the trustee or such paying agent or (if then held by the Issuer) be discharged from such trust, unless otherwise required by mandatory provisions of applicable escheat or abandoned or unclaimed property law, and the holder of such debt security shall, unless otherwise required by mandatory provisions of applicable escheat or abandoned or unclaimed property laws, thereafter look only to the Issuer or the Company for any payment which such holder may be entitled to collect, and all liability of the trustee or any paying agent of the debt securities with respect to such moneys shall thereupon cease.

Under New York law, any legal action upon the debt securities must be commenced within six years after the payment thereof is due. Thereafter, the debt securities will generally become unenforceable.

Concerning the Trustee

The Bank of New York Mellon will be the trustee under the indenture. The Corporate Trust Office of the trustee is currently located at 101 Barclay Street, New York, New York 10286, United States, Attention: Global Corporate Trust.

The indenture provides that the trustee, subject to the following sentence, undertakes to perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in the indenture. If an Event of Default has occurred and is

continuing, the trustee will use the same degree of care and skill in its exercise of the rights and powers vested in it by the indenture as a prudent person would exercise under the circumstances in the conduct of such person's own affairs. The indenture also provides that the trustee and any paying or other agent of the debt securities, in their individual or any other capacity, may become the owner or pledgee of debt securities with the same rights it would have if it were not the trustee or such agent and may otherwise deal with the Company and the Issuer and receive, collect, hold and retain collections from the Company and the Issuer with the same rights it would have if it were not the trustee or such agent; provided, however, that all moneys received by the trustee shall, until used or applied as provided in the indenture, be held in trust thereunder for the purposes for which they were received and need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law.

The trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any rights or powers conferred under the indenture for the benefit of the holders unless such holders have offered to the trustee pre-funding, security and/or indemnity satisfactory to the trustee against any loss, liability or expense. In the exercise of its duties, the trustee shall not be responsible for the calculation or computation of any amount payable under the debt securities and the guarantees or the verification of any such calculations or computations or any verification of the accuracy or completeness of any certification, opinion or other documents submitted to it by the Company or the Issuer.

Indemnification for Judgment Currency Fluctuations

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the obligations of the Company or the Issuer to any holder of the applicable series of debt securities under the indenture, the debt securities or the guarantees, as the case may be, shall, notwithstanding any judgment in a currency (the "Judgment Currency") other than U.S. dollars (the "Agreement Currency"), be discharged only to the extent that on the day following receipt by such holder or the trustee, as the case may be, of any amount in the Judgment Currency, such holder or the trustee, as the case may be, may in accordance with normal banking procedures purchase the Agreement Currency with the Judgment Currency. If the amount of the Agreement Currency so purchased is less than the amount originally to be paid to such holder or the trustee, as the case may be, in the Agreement Currency, the Company and the Issuer agree, as a separate obligation and notwithstanding such judgment, to pay the difference and if the amount of the Agreement Currency so purchased exceeds the amount originally to be paid to such holder, such holder or the trustee, as the case may be, agrees to pay to or for the account of the Company or the Issuer, as the case may be, such excess; provided that such holder or the trustee, as the case may be, shall not have any obligation to pay any such excess as long as a default by the Company or the Issuer in its obligations under the indenture or the debt securities has occurred and is continuing, in which case such excess may be applied by such holder or the trustee, as the case may be, to such obligations.

Notices

Notices to holders of debt securities will be mailed to them (or the first named of joint holders) by first class mail (or, if first class mail is unavailable, by airmail) at their respective addresses in the register and will be deemed to have been given on the fourth Business Day after the date of mailing. So long as and to the extent that the debt securities are represented by global securities and such global securities are held by DTC, notices to owners of beneficial interests in the global securities may be given by delivery of the relevant notice to DTC for communication by it to entitled account holders.

Waiver of Immunity

To the extent that the Company or the Issuer has acquired or hereafter may acquire any immunity (sovereign or otherwise) from any legal action, suit or proceeding, from jurisdiction of any court or from set-off or any legal process (including any immunity from non-exclusive jurisdiction or from service of process or, except as provided below, from any execution to satisfy a final judgment or from attachment or in aid of such execution or otherwise) with respect to itself or any of its property, the Company and the Issuer each irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted under applicable law, any such right of immunity or claim thereto which may now or

hereafter exist, and agrees not to assert any such right or claim in any action or proceeding against it arising out of or based on the debt securities, the guarantees or the indenture.

Governing Law and Consent to Jurisdiction

The debt securities, the guarantees and the indenture are governed by and will be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

The Company and the Issuer will each irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any state or United States federal court located in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York, New York (each a "New York Court") in any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to the indenture, the debt securities, the guarantees or any transaction contemplated thereby, and will irrevocably waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any objection to the venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in any such New York Court and any claim of an inconvenient forum. The Company will appoint the Issuer as agent for service of process with respect of any such suit, action or proceeding.

Certain Definitions

Set forth below are definitions of certain of the terms used herein. Additional terms are defined elsewhere above or in the indenture.

"Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth" means the sum of the (a) shareholders' equity of the Company as determined under IFRS IASB and (b) Subordinated Indebtedness of the Company.

"Capital Stock" means any and all shares, interests (including joint venture interests), participations or other equivalents (however designated) of capital stock of a corporation or any and all equivalent ownership interests in a Person (other than a corporation).

"Consolidated Total Assets" means the consolidated total assets of the Company and its Subsidiaries as shown on its most recent audited consolidated balance sheet.

"Indebtedness" of any Person means, at any date, without duplication, (i) any outstanding indebtedness for or in respect of money borrowed (including bonds, debentures, notes or other similar instruments, whether or not listed) that is evidenced by any agreement or instrument, excluding trade payables, (ii) all non-contingent obligations of such Person to reimburse any bank or other Person in respect of amounts paid under a letter of credit or similar instrument, and (iii) all Indebtedness of others guaranteed by such Person; provided, however, that, for the purpose of determining the amount of Indebtedness of the Company outstanding at any relevant time, the amount included as the Indebtedness of the Company in respect of finance leases shall be the net amount from time to time properly characterized as "obligations under finance leases" in accordance with the IFRS IASB.

"Lien" means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance, hypothecation, title retention, security interest or security arrangement of any kind.

"Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, government or any agency or political subdivision thereof or any other entity.

"Principal Subsidiary" at any time shall mean one of the Subsidiaries of the Company:

- (i) as to which one or more of the following conditions is/are satisfied:
 - (a) its net profit or (in the case of one of the Company's Subsidiaries which have Subsidiaries) consolidated net profit attributable to the Company (in each case before taxation and exceptional items) is at least 10% of the consolidated net profit of the Company (before taxation and exceptional items); or

- (b) its net assets or (in the case of one of the Company's Subsidiaries which have Subsidiaries) consolidated net assets attributable to the Company (in each case after deducting minority interests in Subsidiaries) are at least 10% of the consolidated net assets of the Company (after deducting minority interests in Subsidiaries); all as calculated by reference to the then latest audited financial statements (consolidated or, as the case may be, unconsolidated) of the Subsidiary of the Company and the then latest consolidated financial statements of the Company; or
- (ii) to which is transferred all or substantially all of the assets of the Subsidiary of the Company which immediately prior to the transfer was a Principal Subsidiary, provided that, with effect from such transfer, the Subsidiary which so transfers its assets and undertakings shall cease to be a Principal Subsidiary (but without prejudice to paragraph (i) above) and the Subsidiary of the Company to which the assets are so transferred shall become a Principal Subsidiary.

A certificate of the Company's auditors as to whether or not the Company's Subsidiary is a Principal Subsidiary shall be conclusive and binding on all parties in the absence of manifest error.

"Shareholders' Equity" means, as of any date, the aggregate amount of shareholders' equity (including but not limited to share capital, contributed surplus and retained earnings) of a Person as shown on the most recent annual audited or quarterly unaudited consolidated balance sheet of the Person and computed in accordance with IFRS IASB.

"Subsidiary" means, as applied to any Person, any corporation or other entity of which a majority of the outstanding Voting Shares is, at the time, directly or indirectly, owned by such Person.

"Subordinated Indebtedness" means the Indebtedness of the Company (including perpetual debt, which the Company is not required to repay) which (i) has a final maturity and a weighted average life to maturity longer than the remaining life to maturity of the debt securities and (ii) is issued or assumed pursuant to, or evidenced by, an indenture or other instrument containing provisions for the subordination of such Indebtedness to the debt securities including (x) a provision that in the event of the bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar proceeding of the Company, the holders of the debt securities shall be entitled to receive payment in full in cash of all principal, Additional Amounts and interest on the debt securities (including all interest arising after the commencement of such proceeding whether or not an allowed claim in such proceeding) before the holder or holders of any such Subordinated Indebtedness shall be entitled to receive any payment of principal, interest or premium thereon, (y) a provision that, if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing under the indenture for the debt securities, the holder or holders of any such Subordinated Indebtedness shall not be entitled to payment of any principal, interest or premium in respect thereof unless or until such Event of Default shall have been cured or waived or shall have ceased to exist, and (z) a provision that the holder or holders of such Subordinated Indebtedness may not accelerate the maturity thereof as a result of any default relating thereto so long as any debt securities are outstanding.

"Voting Shares" means, with respect to any Person, the Capital Stock having the general voting power under ordinary circumstances to vote on the election of the members of the board of directors or other governing body of such Person (irrespective of whether or not at the time stock of any other class or classes shall have or might have voting power by reason of the happening of any contingency).

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

We may sell the securities described in this prospectus from time to time in one or more transactions, including without limitation:

- to or through underwriters, brokers or dealers;
- through agents;
- on any national exchange on which the securities offered by this prospectus are listed or any automatic
 quotation system through which the securities may be quoted;
- directly to one or more purchasers;
- or through a combination of any of these methods.

In addition, we may enter into derivative or hedging transactions with third parties, or sell securities not covered by this prospectus to third parties in privately negotiated transactions. In connection with such a transaction, the third parties may sell securities covered by and pursuant to this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement. If so, the third party may use securities borrowed from us or others to settle such sales and may use securities received from us to close out any related short positions. We may also loan or pledge securities covered by this prospectus and an applicable prospectus supplement to third parties, who may sell the loaned securities or, in an event of default in the case of a pledge, sell the pledged securities pursuant to this prospectus and the applicable prospectus supplement.

We may sell the securities offered by this prospectus at:

- a fixed price or prices, which may be changed;
- market prices prevailing at the time of sale;
- prices related to such prevailing market prices;
- · or negotiated prices.

We will identify the specific plan of distribution, including any underwriters, dealers, agents or direct purchasers, and their compensation in a prospectus supplement.

ENFORCEABILITY OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Issuer is a limited liability company formed in and under the laws of the State Delaware, and we are a company incorporated with limited liability in Hong Kong. A substantial portion of our assets are located in China. In addition, substantially all of our directors and officers reside outside the United States (principally in the PRC or Hong Kong) and certain experts named in this prospectus also reside outside the United States. All or a substantial portion of the assets of such persons are or may be located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon us or such persons to enforce against them judgments obtained in United States courts, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States.

We have been advised by our Hong Kong counsel, Davis Polk & Wardwell, that there is doubt as to the enforceability in Hong Kong in original actions or in actions for enforcement of judgments of United States courts, of civil liabilities predicated solely upon the U.S. federal or state securities laws.

In addition, there are uncertainties as to whether the courts of the PRC would (i) recognize or enforce the judgments of United States courts obtained against the Issuer or the Company, or their respective directors and officers, predicated upon the civil liability provision of the U.S. federal or state securities laws; or (ii) entertain original actions brought in the courts of the PRC against the Issuer or the Company or such persons predicated upon the U.S. federal or state securities laws.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters with respect to the debt securities and the guarantees will be passed upon for us by Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, New York, New York, as to matters of United States federal securities and New York State law, and by Davis Polk & Wardwell, Hong Kong, as to matters of Hong Kong law, respectively.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated in this Prospectus by reference from the Company's Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2017 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports, which are incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the reports of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

Certain reserve information relating to our oil and gas reserves included in our annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2017 was based in part upon reserve reports prepared by independent consultants Ryder Scott Company, L.P., Gaffney, Cline & Associates (Consultants) Pte Ltd., RPS, McDaniel & Associates Consultants Ltd. and DeGolyer and MacNaughton. We have incorporated this information in this prospectus by reference to such annual report and included certain of this information in this prospectus in reliance on the authority of such firms as experts in estimating proved oil and gas reserves.

No dealer, salesperson or other person is authorized to give any information or to represent anything not contained in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus. You must not rely on any unauthorized information or representations. This prospectus supplement is an offer to sell only the notes offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus is current only as of its date.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Prospectus Supplement	
About this Prospectus Supplement and the	
Accompanying Prospectus	S-ii
Forward-Looking Statements	S-iii
Summary	S-1
Certain Financial Data	S-7
Risk Factors	S-11
Use of Proceeds	S-14
Exchange Rate Information	S-15
Capitalization	S-16
Description of the Notes and Guarantees	S-17
Taxation	S-22
Underwriting (Conflicts of Interest)	S-27
Legal Matters	S-33
Experts	S-33
Where You Can Find More Information	
About Us	S-34
Incorporation of Documents by Reference	S-34
Prospectus	
-	Page
About this Prospectus	1
CNOOC Limited	2
The Issuer	2
	3
Risk Factors	3 4
Forward-Looking Statements	4
Where You Can Find More Information	_
About Us	5
Incorporation of Documents By Reference	5
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	6
Use of Proceeds	6
Description of Debt Securities and	
Guarantees	7
Plan of Distribution	7
	23
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities	•
Enforceability of Civil Liabilities Legal Matters	23
	23 24

CNOOC Finance (2015) U.S.A. LLC

US\$1,000,000,000 4.375% Guaranteed Notes due 2028

US\$450,000,000 3.750% Guaranteed Notes due 2023

Unconditionally and Irrevocably Guaranteed by

CNOOC Limited



PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

Joint Global Coordinators, Joint Lead Managers and Joint Bookrunners (in alphabetical order)

Bank of China

Citigroup

Credit Suisse

Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.

HSBC

J.P. Morgan

Joint Bookrunners (in alphabetical order)

ICBC International

Mizuho Securities

Natixis

Société Générale Corporate & Investment Banking

April 25, 2018